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2015 2014 Change

EBREEEFT) RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS (HK$'000)
U %5 Revenue 1,567,788 1,846,175 -15%
PR A5 B e Profit before tax 42,503 105,931 -60%
RAGERFEEA Profit attributable to equity holders

FEAE S5 R of the Company 20,356 81,368 -75%
BERHE Total assets 3,752,231 3,896,487 -4%
R Shareholders’ funds 2,883,670 2,895,126 0%
BETIRA Issued share capital 63,053 63,053 0%
MENVE EFAE Net current assets 1,696,450 1,680,797 1%
SREE PER SHARE DATA
GIREAREF CGEM) Basic earnings per share (HK cents) 3.2 129 -75%
SRR RECEML) Cash dividends per share (HK cents) 5.0 7.0 -29%
SREEFECET) Net assets per share (HK$) 4.6 4.6 0%
FEMKLLE KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
RS R E R ER R (%) Return on average shareholders’ funds (%) 0.7 28 -75%
P EELEORE(%) Return on average total assets (%) 0.5 2.1 -76%
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Shareholders’ Calendar

Annual General Meeting (AGM)
26 August 2015 (Wednesday) at 4:00 p.m.

Register of Shareholders

Closure of Register (both dates inclusive)

For attending AGM 24 — 26 August 2015
(Mon — Wed)

For Final Dividend and

Special Final Dividend 2 — 4 September 2015

(Wed — Fri)
Dividend (per Share)
Interim Dividend HK1.2 Cents
Paid on 14 January 2015 (Wed)
Final Dividend HKO.6 Cent
Special Final Dividend HK3.2 Cents

Payable on or about 18 September 2015 (Fri)
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Business Review

The Group registered a 15% decrease in turnover to HK$1,568 million
(2014: HK$1,846 million) for the financial year ended 31 March 2015
as compared with last financial year. Profit attributable to equity holders
declined by 75% to HK$20 million (2014: HK$81 million).

The China Government’s policy of tightening liquidity continued to depress
the domestic market. China economic growth and domestic manufacturing
industry experienced a slowdown during the financial year resulting
in sluggish domestic consumption. Small-to-medium enterprises were
seriously affected by the tightening liquidity policy. Together with escalating
operating costs in recent years, the operating environment in China
remained challenging. In addition, many overseas countries experienced a
rapid currency devaluation against the US Dollar during this financial year
leading to our sales growth in the international markets not meeting our
original target.

Although the general market was weak, the Group shall however continue
to enhance its existing product design, improve quality and stability, as
well as gain bigger market share in automotive and large-tonnage injection
moulding machine sectors. With the customers’ general positive feedback
on our ultra-large-tonnage injection moulding machine delivered last year,
our growth in the automotive and large-tonnage sectors was stable.

Furthermore, the Group had successfully launched and exhibited the first
model of an all-new series “Sixth Generation” MKVI targeting the high-end
markets and industries in the Guangzhou Chinaplas 2015. This new series
of product line, contributing more towards efficiency, energy saving and
emission reduction, will be more competitive in the current market situation
and satisfy the demands of both domestic and international medium-to-
high-end customers.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Chairman’s Statement

Future Prospects

According to the latest economic indicators, the U.S. economy is
forecasted to grow mildly in the coming year, but will continue to show
uncertainties due to its inflationary pressure and expectations of interest
rate hikes. Furthermore, the strengthening U.S. Dollar will continue to
plague the economies of the emerging markets. On the other hand, the
Greek government-debt crisis remains unresolved and continues to
hamper economies in the Eurozone, even though the European Central
Bank continues credit-easing, sovereign debt crisis is still threatening the
economic recovery of the entire Eurozone.

Indicators show the Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth rate in China
will experience a continued slowdown in the coming years, although the
Central Government in China is likely to introduce measures to maintain
growth, such as targeted reduction of required reserve ratio to support
small-to-medium enterprises and loosening of monetary policy, on the other
hand not so much as to fuel the overheated equity and real estate markets.
Consequently, the Group remains cautious on the China market for the
coming year. Disappointing China economic indicators in the first quarter
of this year also indicated the unclear prospects in the China economy.
To face these challenges, the Group is to maintain its solid and pragmatic
style of management, continue to develop new series of product and new
international markets, and invest resources to maintain competitiveness.

Gratitude

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to give my heartfelt thanks
to all shareholders of Chen Hsong Group, customers, suppliers, business
partners, banks for their long term support and the loyal and industrious
employees for their contribution over the years.

Chen CHIANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2015
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis
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Business Performance

For the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the Group registered total
turnover decline of 15% over the previous year to HK$1,568 million (2014:
HK$1,846 million). Profit attributable to equity holders decreased by 75%
to HK$20 million (2014: HK$81 million) as compared with the previous
year. Basic earnings per share was HK3.2 cents (2014: HK12.9 cents).
The Renminbi currency appreciated during the previous year and had
generated net foreign exchange gains of HK$31 million. If foreign exchange
impacts were disregarded, profit attributable to equity holders would have
decreased by 64% to HK$18 million (2014: HK$50 million) as compared
with the previous year. The board of directors recommended the payment
of a final dividend of HKO.6 cent (2014: HK4 cents) per share and a special
final dividend of HK3.2 cents (2014: Nil) per share for this financial year.

China Gross Domestic Products (GDP) growth continued its long decline to
7% for the first quarter of 2015 — the lowest level since the 2008 financial
crisis. Growth for the full year of 2014 came to only 7.4% which, although
slightly higher than the official estimate of 7.2%, was the lowest annual
growth rate for China in the past 24 years. Analysts and economists mostly
concur that the China economy is currently at a crossroads between new
and old market dynamics, and is facing downwards pressure due to the
weakening state of both domestic consumption as well as export demand,
which in turn leads to disappointing industrial growth.

Top Chinese officials recently coined the term “New Normality” to describe
the current low-growth environment, which essentially was an admission
that China’s era of high GDP growth had officially come to an end. Although
a 7.4% annual GDP growth is still currently the highest growth rate in the
world, domestic and foreign economic environments have since become
complicated and intertwined, creating numerous challenges and difficulties
for future economic development. China’s manufacturing sector and export
trade, once a strong pillar of global economic activities, show even more
weakness than a few years ago. Continuous decline in real-estate prices
had forced the Central Government to implement a series of “quantitative-
easing-like” measures, such as lowering interest rates and reducing bank
reserve ratios, in order to flood the economy with new liquidity.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

The United Nations and the World Bank released statements at the end of
2014 stating that a complete global recovery from the debt-bubble-induced
financial crisis of the last ten years was likely to be much further away than
expected, while, in the medium-to-long term, the worldwide economy was
still at risk of being stuck in a low-growth pit. Although the U.S. economy
has witnessed strong rebound, the Eurozone continued to be plagued by
weaknesses, causing the European Central Bank to initiate a large-scale
“guantitative-easing” program in early 2015 to counter the threats of
deflation. The economy of Japan was temporarily lifted by an artificial round
of currency devaluation, but its future remains extremely uncertain in face
of an aggressive assault from the devaluing Euro.

The only lightspot among global economies (other than China) remains the
U.S., which is itself being plagued by an anticipated interest rate increase
from the U.S. Federal Reserve. Thus, during this financial year, the U.S.
Dollar has been strengthening substantially against the currencies of many
developing countries, with adverse consequences to those countries’
economies. The original “BRICS” countries, with the exception of China,
are all facing different levels of economic recession and political crisis,
having lost most of their original aura.

On the other hand, the Group’s recent investments in wholly-owned
subsidiaries in Brazil, Europe and the Middle East (Dubai), all met high-
growth expectations, with the exception of the subsidiary in Brazil which
failed to grow at the expected rate due to local currency devaluation.
These successes were the driver behind the Group’s continued growth in
international markets despite the current difficult business environment.

Generally speaking,
corresponding decline in profits in this financial year — decline which is

the Group’s turnover decline translates to a

expected to be temporary as there should be improvement after the new
product line has been launched.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis
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Market Analysis

Breakdown of turnover, based on the location of customers, for the year
ended 31 March 2015 is as follows:

2015 2014
(BgErx) (EFeETL) &
EF b Customer Location (HK$ million) (HK$ million) Change
AR B K RE R BB Mainland China and Hong Kong 916 1,190 -23%
B Taiwan 99 145 -32%
EFINER Other overseas countries 553 511 +8%
1,568 1,846 15%
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The recent weakness in China domestic economic activity was obvious
as reflected by numerous statistical measurements, such as fixed asset
investments in the first quarter of 2015, industrial value-added and sales of
consumer goods, etc., all falling far short of expectations. GDP growth for
the first quarter of 2015 was primarily driven by the servicing sector, with
the manufacturing sector in gloomy conditions. Judging from the fact that
electricity consumption, railway freight volume and current export statistics
all pointed to a continued decline in industrial scale, it is forecasted that
the manufacturing sector will continue to be difficult in the second quarter
of 2015.

China’s
Group’s turnover in the China market, mainly due to a much-weakened

“New Normality” undoubtedly had an adverse impact on the

export sector, which used to be the primary customer segment for the
Group. Since the financial crisis in 2008, China rapidly transformed from
“World Factory” into “The Largest Market In The World,” causing a huge
refocus of export-oriented activities towards domestic consumption. During
this period of time, new, “up-and-coming” domestic consumption industries
in China, such as household appliances, automotive and building materials
etc., sprouted and grew at world-record-breaking speeds. In particular,
the automotive market in China leapt ahead and, within a mere few years,
eclipsed the U.S. to become the largest market in the world.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Such rapid and unprecedented shifts in industrial structure caused
a tremendous change in demands for injection moulding machines,
aspects from product categories to plastic materials to applications, all
deviated fundamentally from the previous export-oriented models. The
Group’s traditional product lines suffered as a result of not responding fast
enough to such market sea changes and rapidly emerging new demands.
Consequently, the Group’s turnover in China in this financial year suffered
a substantial decline of 23% to HK$916 million (2014: HK$1,190 million).

The Group had invested heavily in R&D to bring about the new
enhancement, “Third Generation” SVP/3 product series, which was
launched last year amid strong customer acceptance in the new dominant
market segments. The Group will further introduce an all-new-design,
“Sixth Generation” MKVI series as its main flagship product line for the
coming several years. This new product line was designed with the
“New Normality” in mind, tailor-made for new market segments, highly-
competitive, and should succeed in recapturing lost market share for the
Group in the near future.

The Group’s sales turnover in Taiwan in this financial year dropped by
32% to HK$99 million as compared with the previous year (2014: HK$145
million) primarily due to poor economic conditions in the European
countries as the export-oriented Taiwanese customers mainly rely on
orders from the U.S. and the European countries.

The Group registered total turnover of HK$553 million (2014: HK$511
million) in the international markets for this financial year, an increase of
8% over the previous year primarily driven by the strong and persistent
performance from newly-established wholly-owned subsidiaries in key
market countries, especially in Europe and in the Middle East. Among
them, only the Group’s subsidiary in Brazil failed to reach expected targets
due to economic recession and political turmoil, but still managed to have
a small growth.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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During this financial year, most developing countries and many developed
countries in the Eurozone were threatened with economic recessions and
currency devaluations. The Euro and Brazilian Real, for example, both
devaluated close to 25% against the U.S. Dollar, while the Turkish Lira
dropped 20% and Russian Ruble exceeding a 50% drop. All these facts
pointed to actual weaknesses in many countries around the world, each
of them either falling into endless political in-fighting or turning out various
stimulus packages to revitalize failing economies. Recent actions by the
European Central Bank to flood the market with liquidity in a new and
large-scale “quantitative-easing” program, causing interest rates to drop to
negative territory in some countries, will likely have large and unavoidable
financial impacts on neighbouring areas such as Russia and the Middle
East.

Development of Technologies and New Products

The market for injection moulding machines in China shifted from traditional
export-oriented manufacturing segments to domestic-consumption-driven
segments, such as household appliances, automotive and building materials.
As a result, the materials used also went through significant changes which
now include various grades of engineering resins, hybrid resins, enhanced
resins and recycled plastics, etc. The Group has initiated R&D programs
in response to these new market challenges and successfully designed
the newest generation of machines: the “Sixth-Generation” MKVI servo-
driven series. Every aspect of this new product line (including the clamping
mechanism, machine base and injection unit) is the result of relentless
optimisations and continued improvements, with enhanced performance
and increased reliability.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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WRAFIEEBIIER - SEREOEENRFEZ  From design to fabrication to assembly, the new product line has been

SIS RIS - B MRME RS EBSERF  a pursuit of perfection, with all electronic control systems and hydraulics

ANEFSFSHEERER - REBETHMW - R relentlessly tested and fine-tuned for maximum efficiency and stability — a

MBRBETIERNEA » FHI BRI MKVIERZR  perfect working combination of mechanics, electronics and hydraulics. The

JFHBIE—T—ANEFR2MHELTS > 4  entire range of this all-new “Sixth-Generation” MKVI series is expected to

REBERFTHIZRHE - be fully launched by the end of 2016, and the Group is confident that it will
meet high expectations and bring about new market breakthroughs.

JIEE

The Chen Hsong Group

JETMASTER

JM168-MKVI

FEBMKVI {7 AR 5E )+ 2B 1
JETMASTER MKVI Servo Drive Injection Moulding Machine
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Production Efficiency and Capacity

The Group has carefully planned its factory expansion program and will put
online and use up the additional capacity in accordance with the market
conditions. The Group has continued to focus on improving production
efficiency and introduced programs and measures to improve production
output per head as well as to enhance the quality of its products.

Financial Review

Liquidity and Financial Conditions

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had net current assets of HK$1,696
million (2014: HK$1,681 million), which represented a 1% increase over
last year. Cash and bank balances (including pledged deposits) amounted
to HK$1,020 million (2014: HK$927 million), representing an increase of
HK$93 million over last year. The bank borrowings were HK$297 million
(2014: HK$290 million), increased by HK$7 million, which were short
term loans with floating interest rates for general working capital purposes.
The Group had net cash of HK$723 million (2014: HK$637 million),
representing an increase of HK$86 million.

The gearing ratio of the Group is measured as total borrowings net of cash
and bank balances divided by total assets. The Group had a net cash
position as at 31 March 2015. As a result, no gearing ratio was presented.

It is the policy of the Group to adopt a consistently prudent financial
management strategy, sufficient liquidity is maintained with appropriate
levels of borrowings to meet the funding requirements of the Group’s
investments and operations.
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Charge on Assets

As at 31 March 2015, bank deposits of certain subsidiaries of the Group
in the amount of HK$58 million (2014: HK$83 million) were pledged,
including HK$36 million (2014: HK$41 million) for securing bank loans
granted by banks in Mainland China to customers to purchase the Group’s
products, HK$18 million (2014: HK$36 million) for securing the issuance
of bank acceptance notes, included in the trade and bills payables, to
suppliers, and HK$4 million (2014: HK$6 million) to guarantee for payments
of construction costs of industrial buildings and rental of premises, and
tendering of contracts.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had capital commitments of HK$13 million
(2014: HK$36 million), mainly in respect of the construction of industrial
buildings and the purchases of production equipment in Mainland China
which are to be funded by internal resources of the Group.

Treasury and Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group adopts a prudent approach in managing its funding. Funds,
primarily denominated in Hong Kong Dollar, U.S. Dollar, New Taiwanese
Dollar and Renminbi, are normally placed with banks in short or medium
term deposits for working capital of the Group.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had total foreign currency borrowings
equivalent to HK$34 million (2014: HK$45 million), for payments to
suppliers in Japanese yen (also for working capital in Taiwan in 2014).
The Group, from time to time, assesses the risk exposure on certain volatile
foreign currencies and manages it in appropriate manner to minimize the
risk.

During the year, net foreign exchange gains decreased as compared with
last year because of the lack of foreign exchange gains on the sizable
appreciation of the Renminbi experienced in last year. The Group has
substantial investments in Mainland China and is aware that any fluctuation
of Renminbi would have an impact on the net profits of the Group.
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2015, the Group provided guarantees to banks amounted to
HK$81 million (2014: HK$116 million) for bank loans granted to customers
to purchase the Group’s products.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had approximately 2,400 (2014: 2,700)
full-time employees. The Group offers good remuneration and welfare
packages to its employees and maintains market-competitive pay levels.
Employees are rewarded based on individual as well as the results
performance of the Group.

The Group conducted regular programmes, including comprehensive
educational and professional training, and social counselling activities, to
its employees to enhance staff quality, standards of professional knowledge
and teamwork spirit.

Future Prospects

The Group foresees a major uncertainty for the coming financial year.
Continued strength in the U.S. Dollar, with its induced devaluations of
other currencies, will unavoidably affect the Group’s business volume in
international markets, as well as increasing structural risks. The magnitude
of impacts, however, remains to be determined.

On the other hand, the Group has launched the first product of its new
product line to conform with China’s recent “Manufacture in China 2025”
macro-direction, in order to recapture market share in the China market.

In view of the above major uncertainty, the Group will continue to adopt
a cautious approach towards the results growth in the coming year. The
Group will continue to combat the challenges with solid style of management
and invest in international markets and develop new products to maintain
competitiveness.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Executive Directors

Chen CHIANG GBWM, 0BE, DEng, DSc, DSSc, DBA, FHKIE,

aged 91

Chairman

Dr. Chiang was appointed a Director of the Company in 1991. He is
the Chairman of the Group and a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also a Director of Chen Hsong Investments Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Dr. Chiang founded the Group
and The Chiang Chen Industrial Charity Foundation. He was appointed
Hong Kong Affairs Advisor and a member of the Advisory Committee of
College of Management, National Chung Cheng University. Dr. Chiang is
also the Economy Advisor of Shandong Provincial People’s Government
and the Honorary President of The Research Centre for Market-Economy of
Peking University. In addition, Dr. Chiang is the Honorary Chairman of the
Hong Kong Electrical Appliance Industries Association. Dr. Chiang founded
Chiang Chen Industrial Institute situated at his hometown of Heze City of
Shandong Province in 1999. He is the father of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG and
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG.

Lai Yuen CHIANG BA, JP, aged 49

Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Chiang joined the Group in 1988 and was appointed a Director of the
Company in 2000. She is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and is responsible for the management and business development of
the Group. Ms. Chiang holds directorships in various subsidiaries of the
Company, is a Director of Chen Hsong Investments Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. She is the sole Director and shareholder of
Proficient City Investments Limited (deemed a substantial shareholder of
the Company by virtue of the SFO). She holds a bachelor degree of Arts
from Wellesley College, U.S.A. and has extensive experience in production
management, sales and marketing. Ms. Chiang is an Independent Non-
executive Director of Hang Seng Bank Limited (listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). She is also a standing committee member
of the Shenzhen Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, Vice-Chairman of the Federation of Shenzhen Industries and
Vice-President of China Shenzhen Machinery Association. Ms. Chiang is
also the Vice-President of The Toys Manufacturers’ Association of Hong
Kong. She is a member of the Court of The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology with effect from 1 August 2012. Ms. Chiang was awarded
the “Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong” by the Federation of Hong
Kong Industries in 2004. She is Dr. Chen CHIANG'’s daughter and the sister
of Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Chi Kin CHIANG B5c, aged 48

Mr. Chiang joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed a Director of the
Company in 2003. He was also appointed President — Group Manufacturing
with effect from 1 May 2009 responsible for the manufacturing function of
the Group. Mr. Chiang holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the
Company and is a Director of Chen Hsong Investments Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. He is the sole Director and shareholder of
Peckham Ventures Limited (deemed a substantial shareholder of the
Company by virtue of the SFO). Mr. Chiang holds a bachelor degree of
Applied Science in Industrial Design from Rochester Institute of Technology,
New York. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chiang had six years’ experience
in industrial design, working for a multinational company in the U.S.A..
Mr. Chiang is the Vice President of China Plastics Machinery Industry
Association and the honorary committee member of Hong Kong Mould and
Product Technology Association. He is Dr. Chen CHIANG’s son and the
brother of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG.

Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG VB4, BSc, aged 48

Mr. Chung joined the Group in 2001 and was appointed a Director of the
Companyin 2003. He also holds the position of Group Chief Officer — Strategy,
Sales and Marketing. Mr. Chung holds directorships in certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Chung holds a bachelor degree of Science in Electrical
Engineering & Computer Science from the University of California, Berkeley.
He also holds an MBA degree in Finance from Columbia University, New
York City, U.S.A.. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chung had more than
14 years’ experience in sales and marketing, management consultancy,
financial analysis and information technology.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Sam Hon Wah NG BSc £con, MBA, MAF, DBA, FCA, FCPA,

aged 55

Mr. Ng joined the Group in 2002 and was appointed a Director of the
Company in 2003. Mr. Ng holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ng was engaged in financial
management with several multinational companies. He has extensive cross-
border financial management, mergers and acquisitions, and corporate
development experience. Mr. Ng is responsible for managing special
projects and corporate governance of the Group. He holds an honour degree
in Economics at the London School of Economics (University of London), a
master degree of Applied Finance at the Macquarie University (Australia),
an MBA degree from The City University Business School (England)
and a Doctor of Business Administration degree from the University of
Newcastle (Australia). Mr. Ng is a Chartered Accountant, a fellow member
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, and a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Johnson Chin Kwang TAN B84, BSSc, aged 54

Mr. Tan was appointed a Director of the Company in 2001. He is currently
the Chief Executive Officer and a Director of Raimon Land Public Company
Limited (listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand) and a Director of IB
Partners Pte Limited. Mr. Tan has over 20 years experience in investment
banking based out of New York, Hong Kong and Singapore. He had held
various roles with leading financial institutions including JP Morgan, UBS
Warburg, Macquarie and BNP Paribas Capital (Singapore) Limited where
he was the Chief Executive Officer and regional head for their South East
Asia corporate finance business. He has advised major corporations and
government authorities across the region. Mr. Tan was an Independent
Non-executive Director of Triyards Holdings Limited (listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited) during the period from 31 August
2012 to 1 September 2013. Mr. Tan graduated from the National University
of Singapore and was a recipient of the Lim Tay Boh gold medal and NUS
Economics Society Book Prize.
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Anish LALVANI BSc, MBA, FHKIoD, aged 49

Mr. Lalvani was appointed a Director of the Company in 2002. He is the
Chairman of Euro Suisse International Limited which has business interests
in Hong Kong, Europe, the Former Soviet Union, Africa and the Middle
East. He has lived and worked in the U.K., U.S.A., India and Hong Kong
and holds an MBA degree from the University of San Diego. Mr. Lalvani
has extensive marketing experience in the emerging markets and an in-
depth knowledge of electrical appliances manufacturers in China — many
of whom have in house moulding facilities. He is the former Chairman
for both the North Asia Region and the Hong Kong Chapter of the Young
Presidents’ Organization. Mr. Lalvani is a member of the Hong Kong Friends’
Committee of Asian Cultural Council, a Director of Harvard Business School
Association of Hong Kong Limited, a Trustee of Kew Foundation, a Member
of the HKUST Business School Advisory Council and a Fellow of The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors.

Bernard Charnwut CHAN GBs, JP, aged 50

Mr. Chan was appointed a Director of the Company in 2004. He is a
graduate of Pomona College in California, U.S.A.. He has been elected
a Deputy to the National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of
China since January 2008. He is member of Executive Council and a former
member of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. Mr. Chan is the Chairman of each of the Advisory Committee on
Revitalisation of Historic Buildings and the Hong Kong-Thailand Business
Council. In addition, he serves as the Chairperson of The Hong Kong Council
of Social Service and a council member of the Oxfam Hong Kong. Mr. Chan
is currently an Executive Director and the President of both Asia Financial
Holdings Ltd. (listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”)) and Asia Insurance Company, Limited and an advisor
to Bangkok Bank (China) Company Limited. He is a Non-executive Director
of City e-Solutions Limited, an Independent Non-executive Director of each
of China Resources Enterprise, Limited and Yau Lee Holdings Limited, all of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan since April 2007 has been
an Independent Non-executive Director of Wing Lung Bank Limited, which
was delisted from the Stock Exchange on 16 January 2009. He retired as
an Independent Non-executive Director of Kingboard Laminates Holdings
Limited on 3 May 2011 and resigned as a Non-executive Director of LVGEM
(China) Real Estate Investment Company Limited (formerly known as New
Heritage Holdings Ltd.) on 5 June 2014, both of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Michael Tze Hau LEE BA, MBA, aged 54

Mr. Lee was appointed a Director of the Company in 2008. He is the
Managing Director of MAP Capital Limited, an investment management
company. Mr. Lee started his career in the investment industry in 1987 and
has since held senior management positions in multinational investment
companies including Indosuez Asia Investment Services Limited and
Lloyd George Management. He also co-founded Asia Strategic Investment
Management Limited in 1995. He was educated in the U.S.A. and holds a
Bachelor of Arts Degree from Bowdoin College and a Master of Business
Administration Degree from Boston University. Mr. Lee was a member of
each of the Main Board and Growth Enterprise Market Listing Committees
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He
is a Non-executive Director of Hysan Development Company Limited and
an Independent Non-executive Director of Trinity Limited, all of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange; and a Steward of The Hong Kong Jockey Club.
Mr. Lee retired as an Independent Non-executive Director of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and as the Chairman and Independent
Non-executive Director of OTC Clearing Hong Kong Limited on 29 April
2015.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company recognizes the
importance of good corporate governance practices in safeguarding
the interests of the shareholders and enhancing the performance of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). The Board is committed
to maintaining and ensuring a high standard of corporate governance
practices.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the Company has
complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) except for the following deviation:

Code provision A.4.2 provides that every director should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The directors of the
Company (except the Chairman of the Company) are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years as the Chen Hsong Holdings
Limited Company Act, 1991 of Bermuda provides that the chairman and
managing director of the Company are not required to retire by rotation.

Board of Directors

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of five executive directors
and four independent non-executive directors:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Chen CHIANG, GBM (Chairman)

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG

Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Note:

Dr. Chen CHIANG (Chairman) is the father of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief Executive
Officer) and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG (Executive Director).
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The biographical details of all directors are set out on pages 15 to 19 of
this annual report. Each director brings a wide range and years of business
and/or professional experience to the Board. Their combined experience,
knowledge and expertise are valuable in overseeing the Group’s business.

A list of directors of the Company and their role and function is posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Role and Responsibilities of the Board

The primary responsibilities of the Board are to establish the Group’s vision,
strategic direction, general policies and strategic business plans; to monitor
and control the operating and financial performance of the Group; to
implement the best corporate governance practices throughout the Group;
and to set appropriate policies to assess and manage risks in pursuit of the
strategic objectives of the Group.

Delegation to Management

The Board has delegated the daily operations of the Company to the
Management comprising all executive directors, management staff, and
operating heads of different business units. The main responsibilities of the
Management are to implement the strategies and business plans set by the
Board and to manage the Group’s business operations in accordance with
the policies and directives of the Board.

Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board held four regular meetings throughout the year at approximately
quarterly intervals to review the overall strategies and the operating and
financial performance of the Group. The Company Secretary assists the
Chairman in setting the agenda for Board meetings in consultation with all
directors. Notice of at least 14 days is given to all directors for all regular
Board meetings, and all directors are given opportunity to include matters
for discussion in the agenda. Draft minutes of Board meetings are circulated
to all directors for comments. Minutes of Board meetings with details of
matters considered by the Board and decision reached are kept by the
Company Secretary and open for inspection by the directors.
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REBE-_ZT—HRF=A=+—HIEZBBEFE During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, four regular Board
A RARHBAOAESRTEE®ZE L —X  meetings and one general meeting were held and the attendance record of
RERAD  BUESZ HFECESEINIT - each director is as follows:
EERER BRAE
RS, EEIE HERE SRR
EEHA Number of Board Number of General
Name of Director Meetings Attended/Held Meetings Attended/Held
HITES
Executive Directors
BEEL(FE) 4/4 1/1
Dr. Chen CHIANG (Chairman)
BT (TTEAAE) 4/4 1/1
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG
(Chief Executive Officer)
BERLE 4/4 11
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG
BRI A 4/4 1/1
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
REELAE 4/4 1/1
Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG
NFEHTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
FREE et 4/4 171
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
Anish LALVANISE 4 4/4 1/1
Mr. Anish LALVANI
PRES B A 4/4 1/1
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
FFERE 4/4 11
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
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The agenda and accompanying board papers for regular Board meetings
are sent out in full package to all directors at least three days before the
date of a Board meeting. All directors have access to board papers and
related materials and may, in appropriate circumstances, seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense. All directors have access to
the advice and services of the Company Secretary, who ensures that board
procedures and applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Liability Insurance for the Directors

The Company has in force appropriate insurance coverage on directors’
and officers’ liabilities arising from the Group’s business. The Company
reviews the extent of insurance coverage on an annual basis.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Chen CHIANG is the Chairman of the Board and Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG
is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The roles of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer are defined clearly to ensure their accountability
and responsibility with respect to the management of the Company.

The Chairman focuses on overall corporate development and high-level
strategic directions of the Group, provides leadership to the Board, and
oversees the efficient functioning of the Board.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for managing the business of the
Group, policy making and corporate management and the implementation
of strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board with the support from the
Management.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Each independent non-executive director of the Company has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of not more than three
years and in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company is subject to
retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election.
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The Company has received from each independent non-executive director
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee reviewed and assessed the
individual independent non-executive director’'s annual confirmation of
independence and considered all independent non-executive directors
remained independent within the definition of the Listing Rules. The
independent non-executive director is required to inform the Company as
soon as practicable if there is any change that may affect his independence.

The independent non-executive directors will take lead in considering
matters which a substantial shareholder or a director has conflict of interest.
Board committee comprising independent non-executive directors will be
formed to advise the independent shareholders on connected transaction
to be approved by the independent shareholders at the special general
meeting of the Company.

The Board is grateful for the contribution and independent advice and
guidance that the independent non-executive directors have been giving to
the Board and the Board committees.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development

On appointment to the Board, each director receives a comprehensive
induction package covering the Company’s constitutional documents, the
policy and procedures of the Company as well as the general, statutory and
regulatory obligations of being a director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant
requirements.

The directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates on
the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices, other regulatory regime
and the business development of the Company. To keep abreast of the
responsibilities of the directors and infuse them with new knowledge, an in-
house seminar was conducted covering the topic of new statutory provision
and requirements under the Listing Rules during the financial year ended
31 March 2015. Apart from what the Company had arranged, some of the
directors also attended other external training seminars.
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The directors are required to provide the Company with details of the
training undertaken by them. Based on the details so provided, the training
undertaken by the directors during the financial year ended 31 March 2015
is summarized as follows:

SHER BT HEERE BN WY HRE
(EB%% - E2EF - ZRREGEER)
Reading Materials/Journals, Attending Briefings/Presentations/
EEHE Seminars/Conferences (Relevant to the Business,
Name of Director Directors’ Duties, Regulatory & Corporate Governance)
BITES
Executive Directors
BEELT(FE) v/
Dr. Chen CHIANG (Chairman)
BRI (TTEABE) v/
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG
(Chief Executive Officer)
BERLE v
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG
ERREE v
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
RIEFERE v/
Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG
BAFHTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
PREESSEHE v
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
Anish LALVANISt 4 v
Mr. Anish LALVANI
% B /mfjﬁi /
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
FFESE v/
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
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Confirmations have been received from the directors that they are able to
devote sufficient time as and when required to discharge their responsibility
as a director of the Company. Besides, the directors have disclosed to the
Company their interest as director and other offices in public companies or
organizations and other significant commitments in a timely manner and
have updated the Company on any subsequent changes.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct regarding Securities
Transactions by the Directors (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Company, after having
made specific enquiry of all directors, confirms that all directors have
complied with the required standard as set out in the Code of Conduct and
the Model Code throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2015.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1998. As at the date of this report,
the Audit Committee comprises four independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Anish LALVANI, Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN, Mr. Bernard
Charnwut CHAN and Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE. Mr. Anish LALVANI is the
Committee Chairman.

The roles of the Audit Committee are to ensure that the Company has
formal and transparent arrangements for considering matters relating to
the Group’s financial reporting and internal control and overseeing the
Company’s relationship with the Company’s external auditors. The terms
of reference of the Audit Committee are posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings (totalling four sessions) during the
financial year ended 31 March 2015 to review with the Company’s internal
and external auditors, the Group’s internal controls and financial results
and related matters. The attendance record of each member is as follows:

EREEERE

Members of Audit Committee

HERY, EBRE
Number of Meetings Attended/Held

BYFHITES
Independent Non-executive Directors

Anish LALVANI%E 4
Mr. Anish LALVANI

BREE SR
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

% =] /u\%/_rn_
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

FFELAE
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

2/2

22
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2/2
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During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the Audit Committee had:

e reviewed the Group’s annual and interim financial statements with
respect to their true and fairness, and discussed with the external
auditors;

e reviewed the changes in accounting standards and their impacts on the
Group’s financial statements;

e made recommendation on the re-appointment of external auditors and
reviewed their audit fees;

e reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems;

e approved the 2014/2015 Internal Audit Plan;

e reviewed the internal audit findings and recommendations of the
Internal Audit Department and the responses of the Management;
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e reviewed the continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Group;

e reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function; and

e reviewed the Group’s compliance with regulatory and statutory

requirements.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005. As at the date of
this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises four independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN, Mr. Johnson
Chin Kwang TAN, Mr. Anish LALVANI and Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE, and
the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG.
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN is the Committee Chairman. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for the
remuneration of directors and senior management. It also reviews and
determines the remuneration packages of executive directors and
senior management and to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors of the Group with reference to the
corporate goals and objectives. The Remuneration Committee considers
factors such as duties and responsibilities of the executive directors and
senior management and the amount of salaries paid by comparable
companies.

Remuneration of executive directors comprises salary, allowances,
performance related bonus and pension scheme contributions. Information
about directors’ emoluments during the financial year ended 31 March
2015 is set out in note 9 to the financial statements of this annual report.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the financial year
ended 31 March 2015. The attendance record of each member is as
follows:

FMESERE

Members of Remuneration Committee

HERE, ERRE
Number of Meetings Attended/Held

BIFHITES

Independent Non-executive Directors

B% =] /u\ﬁﬂi
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

BREEJ S
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Anish LALVANI %4
Mr. Anish LALVANI

FFERE
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

THRRERIITES

Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director

BRR it
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG

171

171

171

11

11
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For the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the Remuneration Committee
had reviewed and approved matters relating to the salaries and bonus of
the executive directors (also being the senior management of the Company)
and the fee of the independent non-executive directors after assessing
their individual performance and in consultation with the proposals of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. No individual director took part
in voting his/her own remuneration at the meeting.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 2012. As at the date of
this report, the Nomination Committee comprises four independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN, Mr. Anish
LALVANI, Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN and Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE.
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN is the Committee Chairman. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and diversity of the Board and making recommendations on any
proposed change to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy, assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors; making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors.

The Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) in 2013 which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Policy is
summarized below:

e |n reviewing the Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee
will consider a number of aspects of the Board diversity, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service (the
“Board Diversity Criteria”).

e |n identifying qualified individuals to become Board members, the
Nomination Committee will consider the Board Diversity Criteria.

e Board appointments will be based on merit and contribution the chosen
candidate will bring to the Board.

e The Nomination Committee will review and monitor the implementation
of the Policy to ensure its effectiveness.
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The Nomination Committee will participate in the assessment and selection
of individuals nominated for directorships. Individuals, suitably qualified
are identified and nominated to the Board. The selection criteria for Board
membership include professional expertise, high standards of relevant
skills, high levels of integrity and business ethics, demonstrable competence
together with the Board Diversity Criteria as required by a director of a listed
company. A candidate to be appointed as an independent non-executive
director must meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the financial year
ended 31 March 2015. The attendance record of each member is as
follows:

REZESERE

Members of Nomination Committee

HERE EEBRE
Number of Meetings Attended/Held

BYFHTES
Independent Non-executive Directors

BREEH S
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Anish LALVANISE A

Mr. Anish LALVANI

PR BS A

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

RFEHLAE
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

171

171

11

171
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For the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the Nomination Committee
had reviewed and discussed the structure, size and diversity of the Board,
assessed the independence of independent non-executive directors,
approved the nomination of the retiring directors to seek for re-election at
the 2014 Annual General Meeting.
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Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee (the “CG Committee”) was
established in 2012. As at the date of this report, the CG Committee
comprises four independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Michael
Tze Hau LEE, Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN, Mr. Anish LALVANI and
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN, and one executive director, Mr. Sam Hon
Wah NG. Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE is the Committee Chairman.

The CG Committee is responsible for developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board, reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior management,
reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, developing, reviewing
and monitoring the code of conduct applicable to the directors and
employees of the Company and reviewing the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in this report.

The CG Committee held two meetings during the financial year ended 31
March 2015. The attendance record of each member is as follows:

TRELEEEHE

Members of CG Committee

HERE, ERRE
Number of Meetings Attended/Held

BIFHITES

Independent Non-executive Directors

FFERE
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

BREEH S
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Anish LALVANISE A

Mr. Anish LALVANI

PRE B

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
HITES

Executive Director
RIEFESRE

Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG

22
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2/2
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For the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the CG Committee had
reviewed the corporate governance compliance status of the Company, the
board evaluation questionnaires completed by the directors, the compliance
with the Codes for Securities Transactions by Directors and Relevant
Employees and the training and continuous professional development
records of directors and senior management.

External Auditors’ Remuneration

External auditors’ remuneration for the financial year ended 31 March
2015 amounted to a total of HK$2,214,000, of which HK$2,026,000 was
incurred for audit services and HK$188,000 for non-audit services.

Accountability and Audit

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 March 2015 have been audited by the external auditors, Ernst &
Young, and reviewed by the Audit Committee. The directors acknowledge
their responsibility for preparing the consolidated financial statements of
the Group which were prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards.

A statement by the external auditors about their responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2015 is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 55
to 56 of this annual report.

Internal Controls

The Group has established internal controls in material aspects of
its business. The internal control system comprising a well-designed
organizational structure that facilitates segregation of duties, comprehensive
operational and financial controls, and effective risk management. The
management, which comprises senior staff and operating heads of different
business units, is primarily responsible for the design, implementation, and
improvement of internal controls. The Board oversees internal governance
and the management’s activities.
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The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system. Through the Audit Committee
and the Group’s Internal Audit Department, the Board has conducted an
annual review on the effectiveness of the internal control system for the
financial year ended 31 March 2015 which also included the consideration
on the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function.

The Audit Committee has been established by the Board to conduct regular
checking on internal governance and compliance, and effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control system. The Audit Committee comprises
independent non-executive directors who are experienced in corporate
management. The Audit Committee appoints and delegates to the Group’s
Internal Audit Department the major role in monitoring the Group's
compliance with policies and standards and reviewing the effectiveness
of internal controls through frequent auditing of the activities of different
business units across the Group. The Group’s Internal Audit Department
plans its internal audit activities annually and submits the internal audit
plan to the Audit Committee for review and approval. Regular internal audit
reports are presented to the Audit Committee and any proposed corrective
actions are properly followed up.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and have day-to-
day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. She is a fellow member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. She reports to the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer. All directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that board procedures, and applicable laws,
rules and regulations are followed.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Convening of Special General Meeting on Requisition

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended) (the “Bermuda Companies Act”), shareholders holding not less
than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up share capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company have the
right to requisite the directors to convene a special general meeting of the
Company. The requisition must state the purposes of the special general
meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionist and deposited at the
registered office of the Company.

If the directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene a special general meeting, the
requisitionist, or any of them representing more than one-half (50%) of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a special general
meeting of the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the provisions of Bermuda Companies Act, shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of all
the shareholders or of at least 100 shareholders in number of the Company,
may put forward any resolution which may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at a general meeting of the Company by sending
the requisition together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution must be
deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than six weeks
before the general meeting.

Pursuant to Bye-law 114 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, shareholder may
propose a person other than a retiring director of the Company for election
as a director of the Company at the general meeting by lodging at the
head office of the Company, a written notice of nomination with the written
consent of the nominated person of his/her willingness to be elected, for a
period of at least 7 days which shall commence no earlier than the day after
the dispatch of the notice of general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than 7 days before the date of such general meeting.
Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a director
are posted on the website of the Company.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with all
shareholders and is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure
of relevant information through publication of interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars to shareholders. To enable the shareholders
and investors have timely access to updated information about the Group,
the Company’s website (www.chenhsong.com.hk) contains important
corporate information, annual and interim reports, as well as announcements
and circulars issued by the Company.

The Company usually conducts briefing immediately following the
publication of the announcement of interim and final results. Face-to-face
meetings and conference calls with institutional investors and investment
analysts are conducted to make sure that shareholders and potential
investors can obtain a good understanding of the Company’s business.
To ensure all shareholders and potential investors receive equal access to
information at the same time, inside information is released by publication
of announcements pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to
exchange views with the Board. Shareholders are encouraged to attend
the annual general meeting for which at least 20 clear business days prior
notice is given. The Chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer and
Chairmen of the Board committees (or in their absence, other members
of the committee) are available to answer shareholders’ questions at the
annual general meeting. In addition, a representative of the Company’s
external auditors is requested to attend the annual general meeting to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the
auditors’ report, accounting policies and auditor independence.

In the case of any special general meeting to approve a connected
transaction which is subject to independent shareholders’ approval,
members of the independent Board committee will also make an effort to
attend the meeting to address shareholders’ queries.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015



RERAEL E2FR(EEEEENES)
MERIRZZRERE - TESHIIRRRASES
NEPRBRINAEG EARETARR - 8RR
RRERTIEA AN DA R FONEER -

EXERCHIERRBABE - WiERIEL®R
AT ARECRELRCRK

ARABBERREBRBEA LB BEEER

RREBEEREBRELEN  BEEHNFIIRA
FHRATRABER 0 -

ARERH

REBZE-_Z-—RAF=A=+—RIZVWHRFE
W RNARZ BB ER X EEFES -

REEBERAR 2015 FH

ERERRESE

Corporate Governance Report

Significant issues are dealt with under separate resolutions at general
meeting, including re-election of individual directors. All resolutions set out
in the notice of general meeting put to the vote of the meeting were by way
of a poll. The results of the voting by poll were published on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy and will
review it when necessary to ensure its effectiveness.

Shareholders and interested parties are welcome to raise enquiries
through the Company’s Corporate Communications & Investor Relations
Department. The contact details are set out in the section headed “Corporate
Information” of this annual report.

Constitutional Documents

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
financial year ended 31 March 2015.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company present their report
and the audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2015.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and the
provision of management services.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries comprise the manufacture and
sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related products. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 March 2015 and the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 57 to 159 of this annual report.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HKO.6 cent per
ordinary share and a special final dividend of HK3.2 cents per ordinary
share to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 4 September 2015. Subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
the final dividend and special final dividend will be payable to shareholders
on or about 18 September 2015. The proposed final dividend and special
final dividend, together with the interim dividend of HKI1.2 cents per
ordinary share paid on 14 January 2015, makes a total dividend of HK5
cents per ordinary share for the year.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
164 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements of the Group.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and investment
properties of the Company and of the Group during the year are set out in
notes 15 and 16 to the financial statements, respectively.
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Issued Share Capital

There is no movement in the Company’s issued share capital during the
year.

Share Options

A summary of the share option scheme of the Company is set out in note
32 to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws or the laws of Bermuda.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the year are
set out in note 33 to the financial statements. The details of movements in
the reserves of the Group during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 61 to 62 of this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 March 2015, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), amounted to HK$179,067,000, of which HK$3,783,000 and
HK$20,177,000 have been proposed as final dividend and special final
dividend for the year respectively.

Charitable Contributions

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling HK$2,000
(2014: HK$31,000).

Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than
30% of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

Purchases from the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.
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BEEEY Management Contract

RERTEETISKFEEBARAT 2T No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
BANMNEBSNEIERITRZ AL - or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or
existing during the year.

z2=E Directors

RNEAREEAFEEZAE - ARTI2E=EW  The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
N report were:

HITES Executive Directors

BEET - xznnE(EE) Dr. Chen CHIANG, GBM (Chairman)

s Lt (Fraet)*
BEREE

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief Executive Officer) *
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG

BRI Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
ROBIESL Y Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG*

BIKEHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
PREE S A A et Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN +@#

Anish LALVAN| %4+ e* Mr. Anish LALVANI +@#

PR Bt Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN +@

T F B 5 e +re# Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE +"®*

+ BERZEGKE +  Members of the Audit Committee

* HWZSEKA *  Members of the Remuneration Committee
@ IEEZEEKE @  Members of the Nomination Committee

# DRELEZEEKE #  Members of the Corporate Governance Committee

BIEARATZ ATMEIE189(vii) & « BBtz In accordance with Bye-law 189 (viii) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Ms.
4« R4 A B Anish LALVANISEAE K 8sE:E  Lai Yuen CHIANG, Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG and Mr. Anish LALVANI will
T BRESERITEEANEBERTZAANTIE retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
REAFAG EERIERF - election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

AANBEEZAABRSEARNEREIS5E19  The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on

B - AEFE7SREBAERBANATIIT  pages 15 to 19 of this annual report. The senior management of the Group
£xo is also executive directors of the Company.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, no contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Changes in Directors’ Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), the changes in the information of the directors of the
Company subsequent to the date of the 2014/15 Interim Report of the
Company are set out below:

(1) Mr. Anish LALVANI has been appointed as a Trustee of Kew Foundation
with effect from 3 November 2014. Mr. LALVANI has been appointed
as a Member of the HKUST Business School Advisory Council with
effect from 1 June 2015.

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN ceased to be the Chairman of the
Council for Sustainable Development with effect from 1 March 2015.
Mr. CHAN ceased to be an advisor to Bangkok Bank Public Company
Limited, Hong Kong Branch and has been appointed as an advisor to
Bangkok Bank (China) Company Limited with effect from 1 April 2015.

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE retired as an Independent Non-executive
Director of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and as the
Chairman and Independent Non-executive Director of OTC Clearing
Hong Kong Limited with effect from 29 April 2015.
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2015, the number of issued ordinary shares of the Company
was 630,531,600; and the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
as recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules were as follows:

(a) Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

HAEDTFERITEZER
ZHBHEDL
REBR 2R Approximate percentage
EEMS 54 Interest in B of the Company’s
Name of director Capacity ordinary shares  Notes issued ordinary shares
BE EnEEA 3,980,000 - 0.63%
Chen CHIANG Beneficial Owner
EREET KA 398,013,620 (1) 63.12%
Founder of
discretionary trust
B fELA 5,000,000 - 0.79%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Personal
EHAtb 398,013,620 (6) 63.12%
Other
BER LA 2,078,000 - 0.33%
Chi Kin CHIANG Personal
EHAth 398,013,620 (6) 63.12%
Other
BHR EA 666,000 - 0.11%
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG Personal
PR fEA 484,000 - 0.08%
Johnson Chin Kwang TAN Personal
Anish LALVANI ELA 220,000 - 0.03%
Personal
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(b) Long positions in shares of associated corporations

REBRKREBRAR([EHRE]) 2 (i) Interests in ordinary shares in Chen Hsong Investments Limited
LimR e (“CH Investments”):

HEEREROER

ZHBHEDL

Approximate percentage

EEfE 514 Rz s MiEE of share capital

Name of director Capacity Interest in shares  Notes of CH Investments

BE EREETZKIA 58,220,300 (2) 100.00%
Chen CHIANG Founder of
discretionary trust

EE ERETEZEEERE®A 58,220,300 (6) 100.00%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Eligible Beneficiary of
discretionary trust

HEE ERETAZEEBZRA 58,220,300 (6) 100.00%
Chi Kin CHIANG Eligible Beneficiary of
discretionary trust
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(i) ARAZEFEEEL  BBEXL
REEREEDHEBFH T A5
EEE D 2 e

(ii) Dr.Chen CHIANG, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG,
all are directors of the Company, are deemed to be interested in
the shares of the following associated corporations:

LR EE A RIE R
BRGERZBNB DL
Approximate
percentage of the
relevant class of share

e EE AR ARG 2= B & capital of associated
Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation
Assetwise Holdings Limited 1% @A (1), (3) 100.00%

B (P E)ZEBRAA
Chen Hsong (PRC) Investment Company Limited

REREEEERA A
Chen Hsong Logistics Services Company Limited

RS AR A
Chen Hsong Machinery Company, Limited

Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited

AR AT

Desee Limited

EBERAR
Desko Limited

BEREBRAR

Equaltex Investment Limited

ELREBRAR

Global Asia Investments Limited

44 mEmsEEARAT 2015 3%

1 ordinary share

2R IS R E AR D 1), 3 100.00%
2 non-voting
deferred shares

5,000,000% (1), 3) 100.00%
BREERTRN
5,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares

50,000,000% (1), 3) 100.00%
BIRERELERN
50,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares

1% AT BE [ A% 17 (1) 100.00%
1 redeemable share

2% iRk (1), (4) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

2R iRk (1), (4) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

2R B iERx (1), 3) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

IS5l (1), ) 100.00%
1 ordinary share
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HRBSEEARIE R
ROERZBOB DL
Approximate
percentage of the
relevant class of share

B EEERE RRG 2 FiaE capital of associated
Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation
RXERAT 2R iRk D), 4 100.00%

Goman Limited

Gondmyne Limited

Granwich Limited

EEEMBBRET R EERBAERAA
Hong Kong Cad-Cam Services Limited

Kadom Limited

EEREERRAA

KCI Investments Limited

HEBERARAT]

Keyset Development Limited

SHERAT
Koyoki Limited

ERABREERAF]

Maxford H.K. Investments Limited

KRARAT]
Mikia Limited

REABARAE
Mogin Limited

KFEAR AR
Parot Limited

REEBERAR 2015 FH

2 ordinary shares

100,0000% & k% (1), (3) 100.00%
100,000 ordinary shares

IR E R (1), 3) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

52,570,0000% & 38 i% (1), 3) 75.10%
52,570,000 ordinary shares

Plibe=3iild (1), (3) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

IR E R (1), (5) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

10H% & @ (1), (3) 100.00%
10 ordinary shares

Pl e=3 )3 (1), (4) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

IR E R (1), (5) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

2R B iERx (1), (4) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

2R E AR (1), (4) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

2R E B (1), (4) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares
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HRBSEEARIE R
ROERZBOB DL
Approximate
percentage of the
relevant class of share

B EEERE RRG 2 FiaE capital of associated
Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation
EETARAR] 2R iRk D), 4 100.00%

Potachi Limited

Pro-Team Pacific Limited

FEER AR
Rikon Limited

HEBERAE
Semicity Limited

[ipl =1 YN]
Sibeland Limited

SEBRAT

Sumei Limited

Tatiara Investment Company Limited

mEIEEBRAR

Value Creation Group Limited
Bzt -

(1) Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited
¥ 8 Z 1% B100%H# 2% © Chiangs’
Industrial Holdings Limited Bl &Cititrust
(Bahamas) Limited5e & # A ° Cititrust
(Bahamas) Limited & ¥ E T ¥ % =
Ee((BEEe)zaETzER
A BEBHFREEGD - AREE
BrDESESZHMERTA  #UE
EETEAREERIEFREES 2K
A - THARER B B (D 5 A s o

46  mEEEARAT 2015 £

2 ordinary shares

Il a3l (1), (3) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

2R iRk (1), (4) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

2R EiERx (1), (4) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

2R EiERx (1), (4) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

2R B iE R (1), (4) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

2R B iE R (1), 3) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

Il a3l (1), (3) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

Notes:

(1) Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited holds 100% interest in CH
Investments, in turn, Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited is wholly-
owned by Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited. Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited
being the trustee of a discretionary trust, namely The Chiang Chen
Industrial Charity Foundation (“Charity Foundation”) in which, by
virtue of the SFO, Dr. Chen CHIANG is deemed to be interested in the
relevant shares as he is the settlor of the Charity Foundation and may
be regarded as founder of the Charity Foundation.
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(2) It JhCititrust (Bahamas) Limitedf& £
¥ B 2 %% 0 MmCititrust (Bahamas)
Limited BREEE R ZE7EA - MEE
ESHEREEEIRE100%MK 7 #
&= BEBEFEHFLIEGKD - AREE
BrAEEESZHMERTA  HUE
EHT A ERRIEERESES 2K
A MERIERBRAR M IS AR -

@) mEMAEBERENS -

(4) ZFEiEzm A EREIREFE BGondmyne
Limited #5545 ©

(5) ZEHEE B E MR E B BAssetwise
Holdings Limited@##A °

(6) Itk JhCititrust (Bahamas) Limitedf #
¥ B 2 # % 0 MmCititrust (Bahamas)
Limted R EE© 255t A M
EESHEERFBEEIREI00%K 7
Wz o IRIBFES RBAREN - BRE
BHZtREEREESRERES
Proficient City Investments Limited }&2
Peckham Ventures Limited 2 100% 8%
0 ZMEARABREESHRUAE
BEmAZERWA - WA AGER
ERB RN A ©

B EXFAEEIN RCE-—RAF=A=1—
B ARREFLBZSTBRABMERARF
S EEMEREE(EERE S M ERDIE
XVER) 2 Betn ~ BRI K EHH EHRIEE
7 R B E R BIF352F BB BN AN R BT RTF
VERMAZ EAERIAR - IREIREST
IMARTTAE AR R KRBz w30k

o

P}

m)
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(2) This represents the interest indirectly held by Cititrust (Bahamas)
Limited, trustee of the Charity Foundation, which holds 100% indirect
interest in the share capital of CH Investments. By virtue of the SFO,
Dr. Chen CHIANG is deemed to be interested in the relevant shares
as he is the settlor of the Charity Foundation and may be regarded as
founder of the Charity Foundation.

(3) Such interests are held by CH Investments.

(4) Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through
Gondmyne Limited.

(5) Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through
Assetwise Holdings Limited.

(6) This represents the interest indirectly held by Cititrust (Bahamas)
Limited, trustee of the Charity Foundation, which holds 100% indirect
interest in the share capital of CH Investments. By virtue of the SFO,
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG are deemed to be
interested in the relevant shares as they respectively beneficially own
100% shares in Proficient City Investments Limited and Peckham
Ventures Limited, two of the several eligible beneficiaries of the
Charity Foundation.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of the directors or
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.
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EEREROIESF ZEF

RER  ARBEZTRRSHTRABHREER
THATERBAME -

B EXPRIREREESN - AR B EA(ANE LA
RERL BT AERZH - BEARBEEA
HBEARAREMEMEABR ZRNAE
FMks MEE  FRTBRABREEZER
BEKRFT/N\FZFERFRRERES I RE
ARBE RN - TMEITEEAZERE
R o

EENHREK 2 #x
R-TE-RAF=ZA=1+—H0  BIETARTE
FR B ER B 5 T kA R B T R TS
A -

FTERREREMATIREBRGRIEER
BREZRAE
RZZEBE—RAF=A=1+—H REARBEEK
ESTHABRM  REZBHRABEKDZE
3B6IFRTF 2 AR R ERMATREE EERE
REMATRARRZ G KBRS 2 Exs
FKBIAT -
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

No share options were granted to or exercised by the directors or chief
executive of the Company during the year.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisitions of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none
of the directors, chief executive or their spouses or children under the age
of 18, had any right to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

As at 31 March 2015, none of the executive directors had any interest in a
business, which competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2015, so far as is known to the directors and chief executive
of the Company, the interests or short positions of substantial shareholders
and other persons in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO were as follows:
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NAEQNBBRBZHFE Long positions in shares of the Company
HAEAFRERITEZER
ZBHEIE
ZERRE Approximate percentage
BRREEHE 514 Number of sk of the Company’s
Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary shares Notes issued ordinary shares
EHRE EnBEEA 398,013,620 (1) 63.12%
CH Investments Beneficial Owner
BE EnEA A 3,980,000 (3) 0.63%
Chen CHIANG Beneficial Owner
EREEFE LA 398,013,620 (1), (2), (3) 63.12%
Founder of
discretionary trust
Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings REIZHIAM 2 398,013,620 (1) 63.12%
Limited Interest of
controlled corporation
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited ZEEA 398,013,620 (1) 63.12%
Trustee
B EnEEA 5,000,000 (1) 0.79%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Beneficial Owner
EREETAZAERITA 398,013,620 (4) 63.12%
Eligible Beneficiary
of discretionary trust
Proficient City Investments Limited A HEHIEE 2 #Ex 398,013,620 4) 63.12%
Interest of
controlled corporation
BER EnHEEA 2,078,000 (1) 0.33%
Chi Kin CHIANG Beneficial Owner
PREECEBREEA 398,013,620 (4) 63.12%
Eligible Beneficiary
of discretionary trust
REEEBERAE 2015 FiR CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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AR FEBRITEER
ZHBHED®

EERRE Approximate percentage
BREEE R 5% Number of FiaE of the Company’s
Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary shares Notes issued ordinary shares
Peckham Ventures Limited R SIEE 2 398,013,620 (4) 63.12%
Interest of
controlled corporation
MREIRE TR (EB)ERAF "B LR 52,268,000 (5) 8.29%
Schroder Investment Management Investment Manager
(Hong Kong) Limited
Schroders Plc R SEE 2 e 52,268,000 (5) 8.29%
Interest of controlled
corporation
David Michael WEBB ExnEAA 7,835,000 - 1.24%
Beneficial Owner
R SEE 2 e 23,793,000 - 3.77%

Interest of controlled
corporation

Btet - Notes:

(1) I EERERE 2 F—H#I& % o B Cititrust (1) This represents the same parcel of shares held by CH Investments. Cititrust

(Bahamas) Limited B & & E & 25T A - (Bahamas) Limited is deemed to have interest in the relevant shares by virtue
HEAEREBEARNDEEEZ  MZEEBK of being the trustee of the Charity Foundation, the relevant shares are held
19 7935 18 E P15 & 89 )% BlChiangs ' Industrial through its controlled corporation, Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited which
Holdings Limited £ B E+5 8 100% 1 25 M #5 holds 100% interest in CH Investments.

5o

2 H%&Tﬁiﬁ'ﬁ?%%izﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ%/\ R

(2) The relevant shares are deemed to be interested by Dr. Chen CHIANG by virtue

EEE S
REIEES - BEELTHEARERIERSES of the SFO as he is the settlor of the Charity Foundation and he may be regarded

ZRRSIA ﬁﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁé‘ﬁ%ﬁﬂx@%ﬁﬁéﬁﬁ °

Q)

NERE LA 2 BRRO S AER -

RIEEBBRDA 2015 FRH

as the founder of the Charity Foundation.

BREL+ABEH L 2EE  BEZSFNE  (3) Ms. Jwung Hwa MA, being the spouse of Dr. Chen CHIANG, in the capacity of
EiEh BRELTURBESZSHMEEE interest of spouse, is deemed to be interested in the relevant shares held by Dr.
N Chen CHIANG by virtue of the SFO.
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(4)  BETYEMER A PR B —HEAR D o R Proficient
City Investments Limited &2Peckham Ventures
Limited ) A EES LN AEBRImAZHF
ML BOERIERBERNITE#ER - MiEE
%42+ A Proficient City Investments LimitedM—
B A AR EE % - BPeckham Ventures
LimitedME—Em#ER A ©

(5) WHEEREREBTR(EB)ERARMFEZRA

—H#ER& » FpASchroders Plc A ZEER A B 12

(BB)VBERARIZEKREREBA  BEEA

REERN B #ER -

B EXFREREEN  R_T—RAF=RA=+—
B BEEAEMA T EA AR R Z RN KA
MR R SOR R MARSENRIEE S N
BI5GB E336IRA R R FTRTF 2 B A ©

BEALRS
AEBERRBERZEHRANKR B BEA
TIZALAYETRS - WERFHEBEF R
AEERAEEBBRETE - REARGERER
FEBRIZZAK - FABHEIINMER
RMIFEST

HMOZBZIMER TR T FEBER
51 BRIIT o
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(4) This represents the same parcel of shares held by CH Investments. Proficient
City Investments Limited and Peckham Ventures Limited are deemed to have
interest in the relevant shares by virtue of being two of the several eligible
beneficiaries of the Charity Foundation and Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG is the sole
beneficial shareholder of Proficient City Investments Limited and Mr. Chi Kin
CHIANG is the sole beneficial shareholder of Peckham Ventures Limited.

(5) This represents the same parcel of shares held by Schroder Investment
Management (Hong Kong) Limited. Schroders Plc is deemed to have interest in
the relevant shares by virtue of being the ultimate beneficial owner of Schroder

Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, no other parties were
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO as having interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company.

Related Party Transactions

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as
“Related Parties” under applicable accounting principles. These mainly
relate to contracts entered into by the Group in the ordinary course of
business, which contracts were negotiated on normal commercial terms
and on an arm’s length basis. Further details are set out in note 37 to the
financial statements.

Some of these transactions also constitute “Continuing Connected
Transactions” under the Listing Rules, as identified below.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

On 26 March 2014, a master agreement (the “Master Agreement”) was
entered into between Zhen Jian Mould & Machinery (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(“CC-SZ") and Chen Hsong Machinery (Shenzhen) Company, Limited
(“CHM-SZ"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Pursuant
to the Master Agreement, the Company and its subsidiaries including
CHM-SZ would, on a non-exclusive basis, purchase steel from CC-SZ for
a term of three years commencing on 1 April 2014. The annual aggregate
maximum value of purchases of steel under the Master Agreement for the
financial year ended 31 March 2015 and financial years ending 31 March
2016 and 2017 are RMB18,200,000 (equivalent to HK$23,149,000),
RMB24,700,000 (equivalent to HK$31,416,000) and RMB27,500,000
(equivalent to HK$34,977,000) respectively. The transaction value during
the year ended 31 March 2015 amounted to approximately HK$3,093,000
(net of value added tax).

As Dr. Chen CHIANG, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG (each
being a director of the Company), together with parties acting in concert
with them, control the exercise of more than 50% of the voting power at
general meetings of Chen Chien Holdings Limited, which indirectly holds
the entire equity interest of CC-SZ, CC-SZ is therefore a related company
of the Group and also a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the Master
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions during the year ended 31 March
2015 under the Master Agreement and confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into (1) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Company; (2) on normal commercial terms; and (3) in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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The Company has received a letter from Ernst & Young, the Company’s
auditors, to report on the above continuing connected transactions of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2015 contemplated under the
Master Agreement in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note 740
Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions during the year ended 31 March 2015 disclosed above by the
Group contemplated under the Master Agreement in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained the sufficient
amount of public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares
during the year and up to the date of this report as required under the
Listing Rules.

Emolument Policy

The Group’s emolument policy, including salaries and bonuses, is in line
with the local practices where the Company and its subsidiaries operate.
The Remuneration Committee of the Company reviews the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for the remuneration of the directors who
are also senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Corporate Governance

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 20 to 37 of this annual report.
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EEm Auditors

REEHZ2-_Z—RAF=A=+—B2ZB8 &3k The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015
KROHBLKEHMEBRTERZ - k2ETEIE  have been audited by Ernst & Young who retire and, being eligible, offer
TS REE WA BKRESERET - themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
RATERENG T ANTIREEE A2 L Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
RERBEER - BELYKSHMMELKFAANAT forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

ZAZERED ©
REEZR On behalf of the Board
BE Chen CHIANG
FE Chairman
BHE —E2—AFAZ+AH Hong Kong, 25 June 2015
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chen Hsong
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 57 to 159, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2015,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report conineq)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2015, and of the Group’s financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

25 June 2015
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Consolidated Income Statement
Year ended 31 March 2015

(EMTFor) (HK$'000) K15+ Notes 2015 2014
Uk % REVENUE 6 1,567,788 1,846,175
SHE AR Cost of sales (1,238,122) (1,429,321)
FEF Gross profit 329,666 416,854
E A MM = F 5 Other income and gains, net 33,446 36,115
HENDHETE Selling and distribution expenses (144,975) (188,187)
T Z Administrative expenses (125,410) (131,504)
Efhge e s HiF58 Other operating expenses, net (48,819) (28,516)
L& RN Finance costs 8 (4,966) (5,469)
FE{REE = A A Share of profits less losses

i MRS 18 of associates 3,561 6,638
BB AR PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 42,503 105,931
Frisfis Income tax expense 11 (23,703) (24,334)
REEER PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 18,800 81,597
BERN: ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
KARIERFB A Equity holders of the Company 20,356 81,368
FEIE R Non-controlling interests (1,556) 229

18,800 81,597

AAREZFHEA EARNINGS PER SHARE

BihEREF ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 14

AR CGEM) Basic (HK cents) 3.2 129
g CE) Diluted (HK cents) 3.2 12.9

AEREMNIEZZRE
PIFEL3

RIEEEBMRLT 2015 F]R

BN HREK  Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are disclosed in
note 13 to the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 March 2015

(B#EFT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014
REERR PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 18,800 81,597
Htt 2wz (Sim) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSES)
HRE 18 BT E 37 77 28 2 Other comprehensive income/(expenses) to
Wa Rz AMEE be reclassified to the income statement in
YWeas ~(FH) - subsequent periods:
BMEGINETS 2 Exchange differences on translation of
E%%%ﬁ foreign operations (7,971) 19,324
"""" FEEER T Realization of exchange fluctuation reserve
—IKHJ% RIZER upon deregistration of a subsidiary - (2,918)
BREZARET > EE Net other comprehensive income/(expenses) to
Wk EtEmE be reclassified to the income statement in
Wz () F5 subsequent periods (7,971) 16,406
TeHREE R ER 718 Other comprehensive income/(expenses) not to
EY . =N ] be reclassified to the income statement in
Yeas ~(FH) - subsequent periods:
BEMNBEEZIBE Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined
w7 (&) benefit obligations (434) 1,180
%%EEZ?K?‘J (Hiaz16) Gain on property revaluation (note 16) 12,520
Bz & Income tax effect (3,130) _
9,390 -
SENEZEFERSE Net other comprehensive income not to
ZWmKkCEMEE be reclassified to the income statement in
e F58 subsequent periods 8,956 1,180
AEEHMEERE - OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
MBRFIE FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 985 17,586
REEHEDTEKZE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 19,785 99,183
R ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
RAGERFEEA Equity holders of the Company 21,332 98,621
IR Non-controlling interests (1,547) 562
19,785 99,183
b8  mEmEEARAT 2015 Fik
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2015

(B#For) (HK$'000) H15F Notes 2015 2014
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - HE &G Property, plant and equipment 15 948,225 1,018,019
wEME Investment properties 16 49,238 -
FEM LA E R Prepaid land lease payments 17 45,369 46,684
[EES Goodwill 18 94,931 94,931
R E AR ZI8E Investments in associates 20 36,310 32,706
FETIBE Deferred tax assets 30 58,996 70,481
BEWE  BE& Deposits for purchases of items of

B property, plant and equipment 2,406 2,901
IR TR Pledged bank deposits 24 - 3,265
IERENE EMEET Total non-current assets 1,235,475 1,268,987
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
T8 Inventories 21 674,134 813,107
JEWE 5 REHBRK Trade and bills receivables 22 754,144 831,402
Al TERTRIE R Deposits, prepayments and

Ho YR R other receivables 23 68,698 59,639
EIRRITER Pledged bank deposits 24 58,341 79,473
e RIRTTHET Cash and bank balances 25 961,439 843,879
BN EEEET Total current assets 2,516,756 2,627,500
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
ERE 5 REBRERR Trade and bills payables 26 294,721 402,660
E TR Other payables and

fERTaE accruals 27 198,586 229,189
FHEIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 28 296,618 290,203
FERELIR Tax payable 30,381 24,651
mE B ERET Total current liabilities 820,306 946,703
REEEEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,696,450 1,680,797
BEEAER TOTAL ASSETS LESS

REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,931,925 2,949,784
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GEMBRNR T Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-_FE—RF=A=+—H (continued)
As at 31 March 2015

CEMTFor) (HK$'000) K15+ Notes 2015 2014

FREBERE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TFHEEAET Defined benefit obligations 29 21,033 23,034

R A E Deferred tax liabilities 30 8,881 11,736

SEMMEN B EARET Total non-current liabilities 29,914 34,770

EEFE NET ASSETS 2,902,011 2,915,014

= EQUITY

EATERBFEA Equity attributable to equity holders

LR of the Company

BRI TR Issued share capital 31 63,053 63,053

1 Reserves 33 2,820,617 2,832,073
2,883,670 2,895,126

FFIERER Non-controlling interests 18,341 19,888

ERAst TOTAL EQUITY 2,902,011 2,915,014

#&E Chen CHIANG #EE%t Lai Yuen CHIANG
F /& Chairman 7T 48 % Chief Executive Officer
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GEEZEEHRE Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE_Z—AF=A=+—HULFE Year ended 31 March 2015
2015
KNERERAARE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BEf BB EAEE EE EjfE FER
ha BEE R B B &
lsied S Copitdl EAEE HEBE -REE  Aset Echange REEA Non- R
i share  premium redemption  Capital  Stafutory  General revaluation fluctuation  Retained &5 contolling~ Total
(#%71) (HK$000) Notes capital account  resene resene  resene resene  resene  resene  profits  Total interests  equily
N-5-MERA-A At 1 April 2014 63063 509,580 2% 51210 1499 231 - 307300 1816337 28%126 19888 2915014
FEEEH/ (B8) Profioss) for the year - - - - - - - - 0¥ N6 (156 18800
TERENZE Other comprehensive income/
i/ (1) (expenses) forthe year
B Bichange diferences on
$He transefon o foregn
EREE operatons - - - - - - - (190) - (7980 9 (9
TEEHERL Actuaria losses on defined
REER berefit oblgations - - - - - - - - W W -
VEERYAUR (Gain on propery revaluaton
HERE net oftax - - - - - - 930 - - 9% - 930
KERHRE Total comprehensive income/
W&/ (1) (expenses) forthe jear - - - - - S0 (%) 1992 23 (LD 1978
REaiEs Transferfiom retained profs - - - - - - - ) - - -
BECE-PE Finel dvicend
ZA=t-At forthe year ended
ERRERE 31 March 2014 13 - - - - - - - - () (B2 - (B2
oHRE Interim dividend ] - - - - - - - ) - (15%)
N F-R%=fz1-A At 31 March 2015 03003 B09S80C 299 BL703 144999 231" 9390* 299321 1802978 2883670 18341 2902011
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FEEEEE SRR Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HE-_Z-RF=-A=+-BLFE (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2015
2014
KLAREHEARE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
B&7 R E4EE EXgH FER
Ra REE B Gt B
lsed  Shae  Copltal EAEE EERE -BEE  Dchnge  REET Nor- Rt
53 share  premium redemption  Capital  Statutoy  General fluctuation  Retained &5t controlling Total
(#5771) [HKS000) Noes — capitl  accowt  resee  resene  resene  resene  resene oprofits  Toll  inteests equiy
AE-=ERA-H At T April 2013 03063 509580 X% 0763 147413 2%l Q128 1788510 2853253 193%6 28725719
KRR Proft for the year - - - - - - - 8138 8I368 209 81597
KEFEMRE Other comprehensive income
Y forthe year
BEh Exchange diferences on
£z transaton of foreign
EXZE aperations - - - - - - 18 - 181 w1
ERRERE Realzaton of exchange flctuation
Rit-ME Teserve Lpon deregisraion
RAER 0f a Subsidiary - - - - - - 298 - 298 - 298
TERNER, Actuerial gains on defned
RE& benefit obgaions - - - - - - -1 180 )]
KER Tota comprehensive income
E2Ekg for the year - - - - - - 163 &M W6 2 99,183
REEHER Transfer from retained profs - - - 7 - - - (47) - - -
ifid{JiRs Transfr of statuory
B feserve upon deregisration
B of 8 SUbsidary - - - - - - - - -
BTk Finel dhidend
ZA=t-At forthe year ended
EgRERE 31 March 2013 13 - - - - - - - (78R @18 - (78
TERE It dicend i3 - - - - - - - (18916 (18916) - (18916)
A E-RE=fz1-8 At 31 March 2014 63003 509.580° 05 B0 1499 231 073000 1816337 28%,126 19888 2915014
Y REREREREEAMBIRRARANZGEE R *  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves
& A 7E2820,617,0000( — & — P04 : B of HK$2,820,617,000 (2014: HK$2,832,073,000) in the
2,832,073,0007T) ° consolidated statement of financial position.
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EEHRERER Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BE-_Z—RE=A=+—8HIFE Year ended 31 March 2015

CEBFT) (HK$'000) #17# Notes 2015 2014

REXBRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

BR A& Profit before tax 42,503 105,931

FEE Adjustments for:
BB AR Finance costs 8 4,966 5,469
FE(RE R Bl R R EE Share of profits less losses of associates (3,561) (6,638)
FEMA Interest income 7 (17,558) (14,611)
e Depreciation 7 68,237 71,386
FE T £ FE R B Amortization of prepaid land lease payments 7 1,544 2,815
HEYE - BEK Loss on disposal of items of property,

B2 EE plant and equipment 7 228 64
T B RAE ZaF Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary 7 - (2,918)
Y% - BE KRB Write-off of items of property,

s plant and equipment 7 326 221
SRkEBEED Write-back of aged liabilities 7 (2,228) (4,121)
FERERRE 5 Write-back of impairment of inventories, net 7 (13,020) (14,650)
JEWE 5 R EERR Impairment of trade and bills

AT receivables, net 7 2,214 355
Hth fE R FORE Impairment of other receivables 7 2,654 -

86,305 143,303

FERD Decrease in inventories 149,145 35,268
N E 5 R EBIRN Decrease/(increase) in trade and

B, (G n) bills receivables 69,872 (10,351)
Al TETRIENREAM Increase in deposits, prepayments

FEMBR SRAE hn and other receivables (12,955) (5,732)
ERE 5 REBRETR LD Decrease in trade and bills payables (104,142) (1,991)
E e BR SR S FERT Increase/(decrease) in other payables

BEEM Ofd) and accruals (28,764) 13,821
EREGEAETR Decrease in defined benefit obligations (1,865) (2,069)
REEEZRE Cash generated from operations 157,596 172,249
BRFE Interest paid (4,966) (5,469)
REIFEFEH Hong Kong profits tax refunded 2 11
BREBEFEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (8) (1)
REGINAIE Overseas taxes refunded 1,791 512
BIEINRIR Overseas taxes paid (16,139) (20,863)
REFEB 2R RNFRE Net cash flows from operating activities 138,276 146,439
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(continued)
Year ended 31 March 2015

..I.|
nTé§Ei£JmEE%%@
BE_Z—RAF=A=+—HIFE

/

i

CEEFT) (HK$'000) B1aE Notes 2015 2014
REERZRERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BEWE  WERREE Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment 15 (37,618)  (115,913)
TET T b & RGN Additions to prepaid land lease payments 17 - (6,053)
HEWME - BREREZE Proceeds from disposal of items of

FRSs0R property, plant and equipment 411 394
BHFILE Interest received 17,558 14,611
H—EE R EWAEE Dividend received from an associate 20 - 3,148
EEME - BB &&HE Decrease in deposits for purchases of

% items of property, plant and equipment 495 952

AFRERRERIMBMABE  Increase in bank deposits with original maturity

=8 A ZEEFFIE N of more than three months when acquired (33,197) (15,024)

EARIRITIEROR AL (38AN)  Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits 24,216 (987)
WEEK 2R R T FE Net cash flows used in investing activities (28,135)  (118,872)
RMEXBZRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
HERITER New bank loans 150,000 195,120
BEIRITER Repayment of bank loans (137,927)  (130,124)
ERE Dividends paid (32,788) (56,748)
MEEBKZRERAS Net cash flows from/(used in)

G ) %8 financing activities (20,715) 8,248
BERESEEY2 NET INCREASE IN CASH AND

R EE CASH EQUIVALENTS 89,426 35,815
i?ﬂzfﬁu%&fﬁ/f@%% Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 794,293 752,186

B E) 2 BT Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (5,122) 6,292
FRZEESRBESEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 878,597 794,293
ReRBEEEEY ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND

HEE2OW CASH EQUIVALENTS
Be MIRTTHETE Cash and bank balances 25 609,799 515,285
E’\T s RE B SR HRm B Bank deposits with original maturity of

B =& A 2 EBfFR less than three months when acquired 25 268,798 279,008

AR RERMIIZ
R MReEEY

PATF 3B BE B R i m A
BB =8 A2 EMFR

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows

Bank deposits with original maturity of
more than three months when acquired 25 82,842 49 586

878,597 794,293

IRE MR R Z
Re MRTTHEF

Cash and bank balances as stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position 961,439 843,879
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BB AR & Statement of Financial Position

R-_FE—RAF=A=+—H As at 31 March 2015
(BB FIT) (HK$'000) H15F Notes 2015 2014
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Y - BB M Property, plant and equipment 15 148 246
KRB AR ZKE Investments in subsidiaries 19 736,793 739,926
EMBNVE EBET Total non-current assets 736,941 740,172
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FEU—BHI B A FIBR X Due from a subsidiary 19 - 216,429
71 R E At FEUAR TR Deposits and other receivables 23 1,987 723
We RIRTTHET Cash and bank balances 25 232,569 8,911
MENE EMRGT Total current assets 234,556 226,063
REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HAbER BRI Other payables and

[EEtBE accruals 27 4,502 4,917
FTEIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 28 215,000 210,000
ME BB Total current liabilities 219,502 214,917
REBEEZFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 15,054 11,146
BEEFRE NET ASSETS 751,995 751,318
= EQUITY
BEITHR Issued share capital 31 63,053 63,053
& Reserves 33 688,942 688,265
RERET TOTAL EQUITY 751,995 751,318

#E Chen CHIANG #EEZE Lai Yuen CHIANG
*/& Chairman 7TIEC#8%E Chief Executive Officer
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DNAER

BHESEARARANBREZMAL L
BRAR » ARRZEBEFMWAMUNE
AR T REAREFIZELH

FR AREXTEREREREETEH
KEREmM °

BEEREARE 2 R AT ARER
Ak 37 2 Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited °
EBEMK 2 EHRERRAR ([ZEH#
& DAARRE 2 EEERAR -

2.1 RBEE

66

ZEFBHRRDIEREEGHMAGS(E
BEIEAE )R 2B BY RS %L
(BREMBEEMBWMEED - BEGE
ANEE)  BERRGFRAREEAR
{2 R ER(REFN BB B A RIGF
PICERADIFI2E) 2 23R - FHARFAH
RREFRABTEB A HMBRR A ([H
P DA EERTES EHRA( £
MAID) MRS - BRREMFREAHESE
S ISR TYIRE L AN E P Aw e
MBHRABEZS BT REHER A
BRI ATT OB TIT) 5%

RIEEBERDA 2015 FRH

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Chen Hsong Holdings Limited is a limited
incorporated in Bermuda. The principal place of business of the

Company is located at 13-15 Dai Wang Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate,

liability company

Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally involved in the manufacture
and sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related products.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate holding
company is Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited, a company incorporated in
the Bahamas. Chen Hsong Investments Limited (“CH Investments™),
a company incorporated in Hong Kong, is the Company’s immediate
holding company.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which, because
the Company has not early adopted the revised Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) issued by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), are those
of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32). They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise
indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

2.1 REIEE ) 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

RAMBHREREBEARAMENBRR (2
BEBAIEEBZE_T—AF=A=1+
—HUEFEZHBERE - HERA 28
HRZB— B2 @R EAR R R HER
ZHRERERE - IAMB AR ZEEH
AEBEUSIESEZ BREAKRE - I
BIREIRESERERILARL -

B g EBOrHER S MR B RAER - I
BRIEEMEERANSEEXLDNE
BERAREEA ANIEERER - B
HEAEBEXERFRARXZERNEEAR
AHEERAE  #xm - WA FAXRR
ERENGRARA K2R -

HEERERBETATHEAREBR
PO =TRIESITTRFP R — AR ZATRA
28 MAKESENFHESEHAR
BHRHIRHIE - WAL EAREITHIE - A
MEAR A RESEESEARIIAE

Ny

#wRH °

i ARSEBAREE B AT 2 ZHIHE - A
IHHEROZMBARZEE(RERE)R
BE - (EFIFEERE S 2 BREERGIDR
ALz REHEEZRE  REROD
WREZAFE  (IFIREERREZA
FE R (i) EAATE R B B 4 2 B ER
At o ERIRNEME2HKRACERNAER
IO ER/FER - BHAKEER K
EHRBEERREMERNAREEEH
DRERGERIRE N (EE)

RIEEEBMRLT 2015 F]R

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015. The financial statements
of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognizes (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

22EHBERBEERE 2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards and new

AEBERAEEOP BRI ERNFAAT

RIERT 2 BRI MR 2 2R

interpretation for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

BB & R EHER - Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities
F£105% « BF HKFRS 12 and
BTSRRI HKAS 27 (2011)
FI2ENED
FETERIFE275R
(2011) (1&&])
BEEGEHER]
F3255(185]) EEEER T Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
BERGIEA Financial Liabilities
FE365% (1E3T) R EEZ A Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
W& a1 25 for Non-Financial Assets
F395(185T) TTETAEER Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
RS E AR Continuation of Hedge Accounting
BAE (BIBRH%E B A HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

BERELRES)

—ZREE21%

BRI ELER  HFEEMZTEE! Amendment to HKFRS 2 Definition of Vesting Condition *
F257(185T) included in
MA—F—FF Annual Improvements
BEE—F 2010-2012 Cycle
PR FIZ
2t

BEMBHREER  EHASOFAAR Amendment to HKFRS 3 Accounting for Contingent
35 (BF]) B E 5 R ! included in Consideration in a
MAN=F—FF Annual Improvements Business Combination !
BoE——F 2010-2012 Cycle
R FZ
it

RIEEBERDA 2015 FRH
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

RS ER-NELA-BAR

BRAA ERRIERT 2 BRI R ¥R] 2 s B &
HAEWBBRRELEAYHEE -

2.3 [ AR RABIHR] RAEETT B R M BRE
ER LR RBEE D RRGNHTRE
X

S 3 A B SRR PO AR UL T E.
R 4 oK A A 8T AR (S 3T B B 75
R -

BEUHHREEN 2@ T A
295
BRMBRERER REFHEAB L

FIEEEEEGS AERAZEA
#ERIE2857(2011)  BELEXTE?
(1&37)

RIEEEBMRLT 2015 F]R

22 BERBEST (&) 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

EEB TR R R ATHIREU S LS Amendment to HKFRS 13 Short-term Receivables and
FE135 (ERT) 374 included in Payables
MA—E—FF Annual Improvements
BEoFE——F 2010-2012 Cycle
BRLZ FIZ
i3

EBTBWMEEDR]  AAEBHHHE Amendment to HKFRS 1 Meaning of Effective HKFRSs
F15(1EE]) BRI FZ included in
AN —F——1F Annual Improvements
2L —=F 2011-2013 Cycle
BRI FZ
P5r¢i:3

1 Effective from 1 July 2014

The adoption of the above revised standards and new interpretation
has had no significant financial effect on these financial statements.

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE

REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 4

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Sale and Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture 2
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2.3 [ R AR R] RS B BB S
ZALURBRBEEEQRARGANTRE

BR(#)

BEMHRELER
F£105% - BAMB
WEERE 125
Frast£Rl
Z5285%(2011)

FEWHHRELED :
F115% (B7])

F145
155
BAEGETER

F15% (BFT)

F165 %
£385% (&3])

F165 %
F415% (&3])

F195% (BR])

F275:(2011)
(188])

—E-FTFS
ZE—CFHE
ZFEME

KETRE - EF
iEAEARZ I
1842

WIBA w1
CEFERE?

EEELARE °

KEEFEFMa’

B

ﬁ%&ﬁﬁféz B
AR 2

B AEMEY?

E BN

gﬁthl

gy BTy
HasA
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE

REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27

(2011)

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Investment Entities:
Applying the Consolidation
Exception ?

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

Regulatory Deferral Accounts ®

Revenue from Contracts with

Customers 3

Disclosure Initiative ?

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortization @

Agriculture: Bearer Plants ?

Defined Benefit Plans:

Employee Contributions *

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements ?

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs !
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B # R R ML Notes to Financial Statements

—E-RF=A=+—H 31 March 2015

2.3 BRI R RIS HBIEHRE 2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE

EAUEBESEELATGEHINFHEE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ER(E) ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED (continued)
—E——FF EFEBMERE Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of
—E—=FAH HERIEET ! 2011-2013 Cycle HKFRSs !
ZEEHE
—E——FF ETEBMEGE Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of
—E-mEFEAE SERIEET 2 2012-2014 Cycle HKFRSs 2
2 FE
1 R E+A—BHSAERBZFE L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014
HAR AR
2 RIE-—ARF-A—HIUNERBRZEE 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
AR AR
3. R E—+F A BEUUERBZFE 3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
HAR AR
4R ZE-NF-A—BHUNERBFE 4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
HAR AR
5 HR-_ZE—-—RNEFE— A —H=lEBHBEHNE 5 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual financial
EUBHRRE N RANE BV EREERN statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is not
ERAEN  WTEARAER applicable to the Group
AEERERZ SN LEIERT 2 BB The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
BREENNTEROZEEDTG - 2 these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application, but is not yet in
IR Beii B F =] M R(EET 2 T BB 7 a position to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have
REER| S BYEREE 7 K& HE NBTE a significant impact on its results of operations and financial position.

MRBEREATZE

o - BARBHEGI (BB LG F622F) In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) will
BrEHEE T NF=A=1+—HBILF affect the presentation and disclosure of certain information in the
EBE7EEMBEHmREARE TER Z27| I consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2016.
o AEBIRERZSEHNTEMELFT The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
E these changes.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

3. FESHHIEHEE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
MiE AT Subsidiaries
B AT ANAG EES sy T A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
(BIEEHBETR) . 2 A AEERZREEE indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
HWEMERmMA S AEESREOR - I Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
B E BRI BB R Ak (BN T A& with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
EEIES -ttt E €l E X Lo vkl power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
BREN)ZEZ SRS - RIS AEEEH current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
e
WAATEEXEEHREVLRIEEHE X When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
ZEIT D AEUIRIRER - B AREBE RS of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
HERHEHREHRNENREEE— relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
PIHEBSEERIER - 81 over an investee, including:
(a) EREHFEMBERZRE ANESNL (a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

BE investee;
(b) EMANZTEEREENREN & (b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) NEBHISE= R BT o (c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
WEBATMEESILD W L EKIE S A The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
AATZEER - KAAFRHE R FIRIEE statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
THLARR AT (AR E B 1B 51 BR - Company’s investment in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

REBENTIRE® DX Investments in associates and joint ventures
Bt N TIHEANEBRFAE D R20%IG E 4 An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
EAEHER  BYHEBREZENCE generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
B o IS A0 ) P 02 B 3 MR T B TR R 4K is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
BOREE ZRES o ME IR E R A the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
RAELEE o of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.
AL ERR—TEALLH HLHEA S A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
FlT4lE IR BN EAENECEE have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
EEmEAREN o £EITHIEIRBA DT joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
WL HERr A 2 s - R HIERE of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
B EEREHITHIE I EE — activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
HRAB ZORERFE °
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition
results and other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change recognized directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognizes its
share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates or joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates
or joint ventures, except where unrealized losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of the
Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognizes any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss
of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in
the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognized in profit or loss or
as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognized for
non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognized in profit or loss as a gain
on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergy of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognized. An impairment loss recognized for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of
the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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3. FESHEEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
AFEFE Fair value measurement
REBNERERRIZAFEF=HE S The Group measures its investment properties and financial
EBRERATEIENEEERE/ T instruments at fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the end
B AT EANSTERENERISLEE of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received
ZEFXSHTRALEEEMNEEEZE to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
BEMIMNZER - AFETETIENMR between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
SRHEEESNEEAEIZRINEESE measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
BZEXEMSHA KWW EFEMS - sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
AR EESRBEZEEN ZMHEELE - market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
TENSEANTEBEARNERIEACT in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
B BERABBZAFEIVEFHAMIESH or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
EeNTEEERKENZHEES G EE The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
TEEBRAEAZBETUE - assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.
ELREEZ AL EAET LTS HEE A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
UNEEAFRBAEESN S UHKEHXE) a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
AEEZEMMELEERERBEE - the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
PAESEEENZ 280 participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
AEBSTH AR ZSRERTREETE - The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
HRECHEIESEAFE  WEATER circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
B @ B A SUE BOR D FE A e fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
BRig AR - minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

TEESHBEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
ATEFE(E) Fair value measurement (continued)
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax
assets, financial assets and investment properties), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’'s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognized impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortization) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
income statement in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and
that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of the Group
or of a parent of the Group;
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Related parties (continued)
or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:
(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,

are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses.
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3. FEEHEERESE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the income statement in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalized in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Buildings in Hong Kong - Over the lease terms

Buildings outside Hong Kong - 15 to 60 years

Plant, machinery, furniture - 2 to 15 years

and other equipment
Freehold land is not depreciated.
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are

reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognized in the income statement in
the year the asset is derecognized is the difference between the net
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plants under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the income statement in the year in which
they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment

property are recognized in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.
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3. FESHEEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

REWMEE) Investment properties (continued)

RN EEEBRAERME  ZWER For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties,

HigeRIB 2 RGERN  ANEREE the deemed cost of a property for subsequent accounting is its fair

HEOQAYEE - WAEBHRANYMESRER value at the date of change in use. If a property occupied by the Group

YRR BIEEYE A ARERBRE W as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the

¥ BELERERLRITE FTMNEE B Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated

ZMEARE BERENABRZA AW under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the

ZENBREARAFERE BNEME date of change in use, and any difference at that date between the

2 BIRIE X WE - BB NMEE R carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for

E Tt MBERREEEMRENIELE as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,

N plant and equipment and depreciation” above.

MERBRRER Research and development costs

AR ERNEERERERPHRE - All research costs are charged to the income statement as incurred.

EEERNTERNIEIEE AR ER] Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is

T FZEENEFEEE UEHERIHE capitalized and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the

E BENBRNERASEEZEE % technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will

BE AR R R ET S - B R HER be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability

SERRZEE  LANRGZITEE R R LAR] SEih to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic

E ZERAAENMLRIERY L - & benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the

Bl - IR EEREES R o ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria
is expensed when incurred.

RERHMESRMEE Investments and other financial assets

FHEHER R AT 2 Initial recognition and measurement

SREENVIIBER D E A BERKR Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial

NEEVENEMEE ERNEWRE assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and

o RAMEHESRIRE  RIEFRABK available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated

i ERE R TAMNITAETREGRIE AT as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When

F) o R EENVBIERE A AFEMSE financial assets are recognized initially, they are measured at fair

BRKESHEENST SN E @ WS value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of

BEEEFEEATEYENS R EERI o the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded
at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortization and the loss arising from impairment are
recognized in the income statement.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization and observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognized in the income statement.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and
all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Group.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015



BA B R R M =L

—E-RF=ZA=+—H

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

FERERRBEE)

TEMEERE(E)
B R AIKAGHEZ 2 EE ()

AR EAM - {5 R R(E B 1R 2 SURRIE hN
Som A I INEoR 2 REZE SR
BEERMEARMEE 2 AR - RIE
BB AR RIE NS B CB E HER 2 RE
18 o R E R R B - xRk E
et Az

TR A (ESRZRE

WA BB R ERRIFRAFEIRZED
EBERATAEREAFENER EFEMA
BEER  REERZEREE ZKREE
R AR RERAETEHEEZR
BhmismmEfERRE W_EZ2ZH
HH - RFEEZRERBENTREE -

BERATHEE

CREEEREE —#oz—ABL
EREEC B WER)ERETIE
U RHRERR (B0 : (e ARNRE 2 &R E M
BARRERBER) - fis -

o WHZEEENMSREDREZER
REfER X

o AEEDHKRZBEEMSREM
BrRENEZE BEAAEXIR
B SRR eREERBERELE
ZEAT  2BATFE=F ROX
KSECBRZREEZBRE D BE
Ko [BI%R ¢ k(i) A 6 B 48 9 iR sl AR R
ZHEEBRIORRLER - BE
ECRREAE 2 IEIRE -

RIEEEBMRLT 2015 F]R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the income statement.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value
because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e.,
removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (i) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (ii) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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3. FTEEHBEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

MR LREE(E) Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

MAEEDEEHEWEGGZIEESEMGRS When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from

BN EELTH 25 HHE an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates

BELRREBZBEEEHRAENER LOH if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership

URERE - hETEEZENREZIEE of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially

ERBEAISmDRRK KO - B EEEZ all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the

BEERIEEE  NEBEEIZANERN asset, the Group continues to recognize the transferred asset to the

SE2HRERAANRZEEELRE - NZ extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group

BERT » NEBMEREBEEE - BDEE also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the

EENBEAGENIRRMAEBIRE 2 # associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and

FREB 2 ELETS o obligations that the Group has retained.

NHFrEEEEFELREROERGELHE Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the

NEEREERARAELRAEHEAE transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying

ENGEaEBLEMENREESE - amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

c@as Financial liabilities

FHEHER R AT 2 Initial recognition and measurement

SRBENUVIBER S E A BERKR Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial

NEEVEEZE/EBE - ERNREDSIE liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as

ERERE A EAE P T EMITAT A derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,

(RIERMIE) ° as appropriate.

FIESRaBREATERR WBE All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the

TR E - BIHGEEEE 2GRN o case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

REB G RMEBERREENES NEERE The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables, other

R EMEMERR - BETAE R EIRTT payables, accruals and interest-bearing bank borrowings.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate
amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortization is
included in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realizable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank balances and bank
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash and bank
balances comprise cash on hand, bank balances and bank deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions
A provision is recognized when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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FTEESHBERE(Z) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
BEE) Provisions (continued)
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When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognized for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on certain
products are recognized based on sales volume and past experience
of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their present values
as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognized outside the income statement is recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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3. FESHEEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

FEBL(&) Income tax (continued)

o HRSRHBRATRELEANTZIHE e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
WERTERMEEZEMS - WEEE investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of
R = E AR AT DA - LA KR EZ the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
TR EZE R e TN e En] B 5k g is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
| - RIEHISN foreseeable future.

TR SR =2 K EAFHIER R Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary

BRI BAHREEEAE HERL differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused

EIERIBEE - S HBE L H IR ERE T tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it

e AT AAEINZS AR EREER . K is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the

%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁ}ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬂi%&%ﬁ%ﬁlﬁféﬂééﬁ%v deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax

ABREIEFIBEE h @R ARE " Mf: credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

o (HMEABMAIIIMEREEZENIELER e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
BEEMRRE =H *?#%ﬁ—_\%/—\ differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
HHORGHVREREESEE in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
BEXZSE  Ye2:1F)H ﬁ},:a%m%lj of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
HEIESETE - BB & profit or loss; and

o HWRWEWEBATIRBE AT ZINE e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
Mo FIREREE=EmM=S r RAEE investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
M ER A sen] RIgKEEL - m only recognized to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
BREBJELEEREFE - 7/ differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
DI ZEEE =8 he2ER will be available against which the temporary differences can be
BIERIIBEE © utilized.

ELERBEEENERE TEERSEKR The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each

F AR E - BEAEAREE EHEZE TS reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable

BUARIIMEERIEEEN 2L » Al that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

HBEERIEEERBE e ewm deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are

ﬁigﬁ,‘cﬁu;‘ﬁﬂﬁﬁpﬁfﬁma Eﬁ%ﬁlﬁﬁ?ﬁ’ji\ug reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognized to

HE DR AIESERSHRERBET the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will

%EEJJE’J EIEFRIEEE - be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

BHEAESFEEEMNHMBHERANT Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are

X 2RAHEEEHIBEEEREE I expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability

NMEBHREHELERE AR FEEKE is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

AT (R BE) BELE - substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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FTEESHBERE(Z) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
8% (&) Income tax (continued)
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,
on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

(b) service fee income, when the services have been rendered;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
rate method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial

instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

(d) dividend income, when the shareholder’s right to receive payment
has been established; and

(e) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms.
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3. FESHERBERE)

92

KEAE

NEERAE B LR LR
BHEAMAZHEDSIEREHE - &
AEEREHEA  BAKENLEHEEN
HOWEEFAGERBEE - MREBEEH
EARKESREREERNHEFHARE
WasRPEFA o HEARESEREA - A
RELEHEAXNESREREENH
EFHRNERERFTIIE -

REHE T AN B ERTRIRA AT
iR HRIZMEFHREREERR -

S

ZEPBRRABT(DNARB ZERE
SRR 2 - AEBEB T & AT BITIR
EEEER - MERRNMHRRAL
HEHUZEESHE - AEEE &
RAFIRZINEZ S ERERZ A2
BEERERALR - RMEHRAINESE
Iz EWEELRRERZAZNEELE
REHMME - AERBERBES L2 E
BRI SR AR o RIRINEE L ARG
B2FEBREB RIS A ERR
B REBINERFEFEZIFEEHB R
BEEATEERZEXRANE -SHHER
NHEFEZIFERIRE EL 2 Wizl
1B RERAZAENAFERES 2 WEK
EBE—2 AR (A A EWR S E R
REMEHEKRERRERAERZEEZ
PR EE M RIN A2 EKaE sk mR

RIEEBERDA 2015 FRH

(continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rental
receivabe under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognized on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognized in the income statement.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation differences on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or income
statement is also recognized in other comprehensive income or income
statement, respectively).
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of the Company
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of
a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognized in the income
statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

Employee benefits

(a) Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a certain percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3. FESHERBEE)

EERF(E)

Employee benefits (continued)

(a) RIKTE(E) (a) Pension schemes (continued)
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Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the Group operated
a defined contribution retirement benefits scheme (the “DCRB
Scheme”) for those employees who were eligible and had elected
to participate in the DCRB Scheme. The DCRB Scheme operates
in a similar way to the MPF Scheme, except that when an
employee leaves the Group prior to his/her interest in the DCRB
Scheme vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the
Group would be reduced by the relevant amount of the forfeited
employer contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
required to participate in a central pension scheme (the “Central
Scheme”) which is operated by the local municipal government.
The contributions payable by these subsidiaries to the Central
Scheme, which are based on a certain percentage of the salaries
of their employees, are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the Central
Scheme.

As required by the Taiwanese Labour Standard Law, the Group’s
subsidiaries in Taiwan operate a funded defined benefits pension
scheme (the “Old Scheme”) and make monthly contributions
to the retirement fund to meet employees’ retirement and
termination benefits entitlements. The fund is administered by
the Employees’ Retirement Fund Committee (the “Committee”)
and is deposited under the Committee’s name with a government
approved financial institution, which acts as the trustee. The cost
of providing pensions benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation
method.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015



Notes to Financial Statements

BA B R R M =L

—T-—Rg=A=+—8 31 March 2015
3. FESHHEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
EEREFE) Employee benefits (continued)

(a) Pension schemes (continued)
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Remeasurements arising from the Old Scheme, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability) and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of
financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
profits through other comprehensive income in the period in
which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to the
income statement in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss at the earlier of:

e the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

e the date that the Group recognizes restructuring-related costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the
net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognizes the
following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under “cost

of sales”, “selling and distribution expenses” and “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated income statement.

e  Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service
costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine

settlements

e Net interest expense or income
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

(b)

Pension schemes (continued)

In 2005, the Taiwan government amended the related pension
scheme regulations by adding a new contributory pension scheme
(the “New Scheme”) in the Labour Pension Act, which became
effective on 1 July 2005. According to the amended retirement
regulations, the employees could choose to either select the New
Scheme or to stay with the Old Scheme whatever they want.
The obligation of the Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan to those
employees selecting the New Scheme is to contribute the required
portion of the monthly compensation to the government designated
account since the election, while the Group’s subsidiaries in
Taiwan are still liable under the Old Scheme for the portion
pertaining to the service years prior to 1 July 2005.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a binomial model.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3. FESHHRBEE)

BERF(E)

Employee benefits (continued)

(b) ERBERZ(IEZ(E) (b) Share-based payment transactions (continued)
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The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which
the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at
the end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income statement
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognized as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognized as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognized for any modification that increases
the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
(b) Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognized for the award is recognized immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

(a) Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group has
to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that may affect
the asset value or such event affecting the asset value has not
been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset
or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management to determine
the level of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test.

(b) Withholding taxes arising from the distributions of dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue for withholding
taxes arising from the distributions of dividends from certain
subsidiaries according to the relevant tax jurisdictions is subject
to judgement on the timing of the payment of the dividend. The
Group considered that if the profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future, then no withholding taxes should be provided.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

(c) Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Group. Some
properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or leased
out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for the
portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on
an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described as below.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
(a) Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31
March 2015 was HK$94,931,000 (2014: HK$94,931,000). More
details of the impairment assessment are given in note 18.

(b) Estimation regarding impairment of inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventory ageing analysis
on a periodic basis for those aged inventories. This involves
comparison of the carrying value of the aged inventory items
with the respective fair value less costs to sell. The purpose is
to ascertain whether impairment is required to be made in the
financial statements for any obsolete and slow-moving items. In
addition, physical counts on all inventories are carried out on a
periodic basis in order to determine whether impairment needs
to be made in respect of any obsolete and defective inventories
identified.

(c) Estimation regarding impairment of trade and bills receivables

In determining whether impairment of trade and bills receivables
is required, the Group takes into consideration the ageing status
and the likelihood of collection. Following the identification
of objective evidence for potential impairment of debts, the
responsible personnel will discuss with the relevant customers and
report to management on the recoverability. Individual impairment
allowance is only made for those impaired receivables that are
unlikely to be collected.
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5. R&EHIMER 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
AREFBTERERERINETBRLER The Group is principally involved in the manufacture and sale of plastic
ERL -mEEms AEEREEZTEF injection moulding machines and related products. For management
A A TRERKEN - A N =E0 kR purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on the
L AR SR geographical location of customers and has three reportable operating
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segments as follows:

(i) Mainland China and Hong Kong;

(i) Taiwan; and

(iii) Other overseas countries.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax.

Segment assets exclude investments in associates, deferred tax assets
and cash and bank balances except pledged bank deposits. Segment
liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings, tax payable and
deferred tax liabilities.

There are no significant sales between the reportable operating
segments.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2015

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

REIEFH
2 EB U
Segment revenue
from external customers

D EHEEA

Segment results

The following tables present revenue, results, certain assets, liabilities
and expenditure information for the Group’s operating segments for the
years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

AEE Group
CEMTFoTr) (HK$'000) 2015 2014 2015 2014
o R B R B Mainland China and Hong Kong 915,743 1,189,675 30,189 80,529
= Taiwan 99,074 145,451 12,167 16,564
H i BINER Other overseas countries 552,971 511,049 15,741 25,584
1,567,788 1,846,175 58,097 122,677

REDIEEE Reconciliation of results of

RREE AR T operating segments to

AEIWT - profit before tax is as follows:
LEDEFEE Operating segment results 58,097 122,677
REED WA R ES Unallocated income and gains 17,558 17,529
PERRES T Corporate and unallocated expenses (31,747) (35,444)
BB KA Finance costs (4,966) (5,469)
FE(RE & N A Share of profits less losses

AR EE of associates 3,561 6,638
BRI A Profit before tax 42,503 105,931
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31 March 2015

5. KRESWER(E) 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
PEEE FEEE

Segment assets Segment liabilities

AEEH Group
CEEFoT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014 2015 2014
R OR BE S B Mainland China and Hong Kong 2,263,946 2,514,389 389,006 503,953
= Taiwan 93,352 145,707 27,877 48,580
EM/FINER Other overseas countries 338,188 289,325 97,457 102,350
2,695,486 2,949,421 514,340 654,883
REENRIZIKE Investments in associates 36,310 32,706 - -
REDEE Unallocated assets 1,020,435 914,360 - -
KD EE Unallocated liabilities - - 335,880 326,590
3,752,231 3,896,487 850,220 981,473

At A HER
Other segment information
BREERNR/ (BE)
AR S WREEETE
TERAY it/ (BA) Impairment losses EXEx
Depreciation and Other non-cash charged/(reversed) in the Capital
amortization expenses/(income) income statement, net expenditure
T&E Group

(BEFT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
HEIRERES Mainland China and Hong Kong 64818 70477 (1,635 (6747 (7,669  (15097) 35441 120614
) Taiwan 964 1312 (7 4 (16) (721) 745 317
EBER Other overseas countries 3,999 2412 (32) (11) (467) 1523 1,432 1,035
69,781 74,201 (1,674) (6,754) (8,152)  (14295) 37,618 121966
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

FFRBEE
Non-current assets

AEE Group
CEMTFT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014
o R B R BB Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,047,138 1,064,295
=)< Taiwan 92,394 97,846
E g9 B R Other overseas countries 637 394

1,140,169 1,162,535

il 2 IERBNE EE R IR E E T &
HBRRBEATZINE  BEEREEER
SRMTEAFE -

6. Wi

Wa(TRAEE 2 EXB)IEFRZEE
BEFRE - OBEREREZTH MR
REERABEZRS -

REEBERAR 2015 FH

The non-current asset information above is based on the locations of
the assets and excludes investments in associates, deferred tax assets
and financial instrument.

REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net invoiced
value of goods sold during the year, after allowances for returns and
trade discounts, excluding intra-group transactions.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015 1 (05
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2015

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

EIE

CEEFT) (HK$'000) M7t Notes 2015 2014
EHFEEKA Cost of inventories sold 1,238,122 1,429,321
e Depreciation 15 68,237 71,386
TEf T AR & 5K 8 Amortization of prepaid land lease payments 17 1,544 2,815
HEWE - BEKR Loss on disposal of items of property,

JiE R plant and equipment* 228 64
B AR E R Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary* - (2,918)
Y - BB KRB Write-off of items of property,

= plant and equipment* 15 326 221
BT REFHEHRE Minimum lease payments under operating

TzxEHEESH leases of leasehold land and buildings 7,538 7,097
MM FHEER Research and development costs*** 40,414 48,618
R B>+ Government grants*/**** (3,090) (5,395)
ZE A& Auditors’ remuneration 2,026 2,029
BIRMZH(EEM: Employee benefit expenses (excluding

BRoN—H1719) directors’ emoluments — note 9):

T & R F Wages and salaries 233,674 253,899

RIS ET B Pension scheme contributions

(EREHRETED (defined contribution scheme) 24,634 20,935

RIS EHEIK AR Pension scheme costs

(EFERAETE) (defined benefit scheme) 29 1,089 1,153
JEWE 5 REBIRRK Impairment of trade and bills

DEAIE0E %= i receivables, net*** 22 2,214 355
FERE Write-back of impairment of

B FEEE inventories, net** (13,020) (14,650)
HAb YR FORE Impairment of other receivables*** 23 2,654 -
EH, 2= B FRE Foreign exchange differences, net*** (2,047) (30,718)
BRMEZHEE Gross rental income

WA B(E on owner-occupied properties (6,518) (6,235)
w2 Less: Outgoings 116 87
BRYEzES Net rental income

WA F 58 on owner-occupied properties (6,402) (6,148)

106 mwzms®RAT 2015 3%
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—E-RF=A=+—H 31 March 2015
7. BBASR (&) 7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

AEB BTSN E IR, GEA) T3 The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BIE (&) (continued)

CEEFT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014

WEWMEZAS Gross rental income

WA#E on investment properties (1,023) -
W Less: Outgoings 57 -
wREWMHEZAE Net rental income

WAHER on investment properties (966) -

HBHA Interest income* (17,558) (14,611)

SRR A E B Write-back of aged liabilities* (2,228) (4,121)

* ZEFBEBERERGERER 2 EMmKA *  These items are included in “Other income and gains, net” on the face
RWas 1A o of the consolidated income statement.

o ZIBBERERERENER 2 HEKA] **  This item is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated
A e income statement.

o ZEBBEERERGERER [ EMEE *** These items are included in “Other operating expenses, net” on the face
SHFREIA o of the consolidated income statement.

e R B B AR R R B m R % ***%\/arious government grants have been received mainly for setting up
TEERATE) - WERIRBUSHE) - W &K research activities in Mainland China. Conditions or contingencies relating
HERARER 2 GHSHBETEREEER to these grants are fulfilled and they are not deducted from the related
BN 2 BRI AT - Bl HE R A E Ath ik costs which they are intended to compensate, but recorded in other
A o fisi 5 B B & RIS 48 B BT UC BC @Y AR A income. Government grants received for which related expenditure has not
AR AT A G R E IR - A yet been incurred or to which there were unfulfilled conditions are included
TEE RV ER P IERI Ef BRI in “Other payables and accruals” in the consolidated statement of financial
JEETRE PR - position.

8. MERAK 8. FINANCE COSTS

REE Group

(BT IT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014

RAFRNEHEE S Interest on bank loans

IRITE B wholly repayable within five years 4,966 5,469
EHEEAERAT 2015 F§ CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015 107
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

9. EEM<& 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
RRBEE BT R B R ETEB A BER(F Directors” emoluments for the year disclosed pursuant to the Listing
BABIEIE)E16LIE - FRESMESH Rules on the Stock Exchange and section 161 of the predecessor Hong
N Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), are as follows:
TEE Group
(GBTIT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014
e Fees:
WITES Executive directors - -
B IENITES Independent non-executive directors 880 880
HAb e - Other emoluments:
B OB REYWE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 11,067 11,081
FIREMRIEAT Performance related bonuses - 891
RIS EH B Pension scheme contributions 72 60
12,019 12,912

(@) BYFHTES

(a) Independent non-executive directors

FR INFEBIERTEETNED The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the

wm year were as follows:

TEE Group

(B FT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014

PREE S Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN 215 215

Anish LALVANI4c 4 Mr. Anish LALVANI 230 230

PRES B4 Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN 215 215

FFEHLA Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE 220 220
880 880

TR WEEMIS SN FEIEHR There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-

TER(ZT—F : \) -

108 mmzmaEmAT 2015 3%

executive directors during the year (2014: Nil).
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—E-RE=H=1+—H 31 March 2015
9. EEME (&) 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) BITES (b) Executive directors
2015
-
ERE
RENFIZ E 3] Bike
Salaries, #HifEA FTEIHR
allowances Performance Pension B 45t
#€ and benefits related scheme Total
(EBFT) (HK$°000) Fees in kind bonuses contributions emoluments
BEBL Dr. Chen CHIANG - 4,041 - - 4,041
BBt Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG - 2,481 - 18 2,499
BEBLE Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG - 1,877 - 18 1,895
ERRTE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 1,534 - 18 1,552
REERE Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG - 1,134 - 18 1,152
- 11,067 - 72 11,139
2014
i
ERE
RENFIZ E3) Eik&
Salaries, HTEAr SRR
allowances Performance Pension [
#£ and benefits related scheme Total
(EMFT) (HK$'000) Fees in kind bonuses contributions emoluments
BEELT Dr. Chen CHIANG - 4,055 337 - 4392
BBzt Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG - 2,481 206 15 2,702
BEELE Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG - 1,877 126 15 2,018
BRREE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 1,534 128 15 1,677
REELAE Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG - 1,134 94 15 1,243
- 11,081 891 60 12,032
EHEEERAR 2015 FR CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015 1 (09




BA B R R M AL

—ZE—RF=A=1+—H

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

9. EEME(E) 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Executive directors (continued)

(b) BMITES(E)

110

HWITEEHeHEWT

The emoluments of the executive directors fell within the following
bands:

BEEAHY
Number of directors

(B (HK$) 2015 2014
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1 1
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 2 1
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 1 1
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 - 1
4,000,001 - 4,500,000 1 1

5 5
ER_ZEN\FE  2HELEEY Due to the adverse effects of the global financial tsunami in late
E ZHRTESEHEREERRE 2008, the executive directors had voluntarily agreed to effect a

BB T N RS A R N H B
30%  BEBLLE BUREEMRR
RIS R EARFB20% - 2B AR
ZEN\F+A—BHRBER HER
SEEBHBMATEETRREEDN
RERLE - AR EREERBRFEN
TRUBR T ER 0 MAKEZ Z2&ET
BRIBE - MEATEZRERER
BEA R E N R10% AR —F
—ZE-FA-HRER - ERTESE
RARBEER  WTEFZELHME
EE=ERRG HEMEZ RBKF -

FAR AEETEGLTESFHE AR
By AR SR B AE R IMARNE E
5 SR - SREEBAR(E o

RIEEBERDA 2015 FRH

temporary reduction of 30% of basic remuneration in the cases of
Dr. Chen CHIANG and Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG and 20% of basic
remuneration in the cases of Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG, Mr. Stephen
Hau Leung CHUNG and Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG, all with effect
from 1 December 2008 until the business of the Group recovers
and when the executive directors consider appropriate. In view
of the fact that the global economy started and continued to
recover from the financial tsunami and the business operation
of the Group had become stable, all the executive directors had
agreed to change the rate of temporary reduction of their basic
remuneration to 10% with effect from 1 March 2010. The basic
remuneration of the executive directors would be resumed to the
original levels as contained in their service agreements when the
executive directors consider appropriate.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the

directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office.
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10. EEEEEME2ES

11.

FR IRESEEMEZRBER/ERR(Z
T—MF: AR)EF - ARG
MRS ©

FrigBix i

AEEFERERNBEZERTEN -
WA EBEMEHIRI6L5% (ZT—HEF :
16.5% ) T RAE LA o Eo b 2 B
HARASBQEEBIERR, AR
B2 RITHEFE

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

11.

The five highest paid employees during the year included five (2014
five) directors, details of whose emoluments are set out in note 9 to the
financial statements.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2014:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions
in which the Group operates.

rEE Group
CE¥FT) (HK$°000) 2015 2014
BNER : Current:
AEFZ M Charge for the year
aBE Hong Kong 4 3
E i@ Elsewhere 8,201 13,179
BEFEZIREBE Overprovision in prior years (87) (100)
PEIE — H15730 Deferred — note 30 15,585 11,252
REEHIEL L Tax charge for the year 23,703 24,334

REEBERAR 2015 FH
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11.

12.

112

FRg®i ()

HBRBANRFABARAA R RENEA
RIFTEER AlERER 2 AR R E (B
EH12%%E25%) 2 BIEZ L - ERERH
EHE 2 RBEZ AT

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2015

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

to the tax expense at the effective tax rates is as follows:

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rates, ranging from 12% to 25%, for the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled

rEE Group
CEEFT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014
FREERT 3@ A Profit before tax 42,503 105,931
BEEMEFAHEZ HIA Tax at the statutory tax rates 17,156 29,429
R 1 s 7 s Tax concessions/lower tax rates for

2RISR, ER R R specific provinces and local authorities (6,280) (9,094)
B N RIS & A R B 1R Profits and losses attributable to associates (890) (1,659)
TRz H Expenses not deductible for tax 7,230 6,645
BAGMTRIA 2 WA Income not subject to tax (4,684) (11,910)
RERZ ANFEFIBEE Tax losses for the year not recognized 10,313 8,786
FRRERZBEFE Unrecognized tax losses from

BIEEE prior years utilized (3,907) (1,282)
BAEFERERRIE 2 ' Adjustments in respect of current tax of prior years (87) (100)
REBEZWBRBDE Effect of withholding tax on distributable

FMEEENEFHR 2 & profits of the subsidiaries of the Group 4,852 3,519
BRAEEERMNEFEZ Tax charge at the Group’s

IS effective tax rate 23,703 24,334

RO EHFE AEIEEF

BE_Z-RAF=-A=+t—HLFEAR
Gk $ ?175Af1£i?m/mﬂqﬂ@’a‘ﬁé$g
A BHERCFH ARNEIRE31,016,000
#38,180,0007T,) (B3t

TT(ZE—F : %
33) ©

RIEEBERDA 2015 FRH

12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2015 includes a loss of
HK$31,016,000 (2014: HK$38,180,000) which has been dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company (note 33).
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—ZT—RF=A=+—H 31 March 2015
13. k2 13. DIVIDENDS
(CBIETFIT) (HK$000) 2015 2014
FREMRE - Dividends paid during the year:
HE-Z—HE=H=+—H Final in respect of the financial year
PR 2 RE— 8% ended 31 March 2014 — HK$0.04
WA EEE0.047T (year ended 31 March 2013: HK$0.06)
(HE=ZT—=%=A per ordinary share
=+—BILFE:
7E#50.067T) 25,221 37,832
FRE— AR AR Interim — HK$0.012 (2014: HK$0.03)
BHE0.0127L(ZF— M4 - per ordinary share
B#0.037T) 7,567 18,916
32,788 56,748
EE A MIFRIRAE S Proposed final and special final dividends:
RE— B BB #50.0067T  Final — HK$0.006 (2014: HK$0.04)
—EF—Y4F : E¥0.047T) per ordinary share 3,783 25,221
FRIRH —EBRERK Special final - HK$0.032 (2014: Nil)
B#80.03270( —ZE— U4 - per ordinary share
) 20,177 -
23,960 25,221
REREEF AR RSB REAR BB The proposed final and special final dividends for the year are subject
NEEREENERT ZIREREFE A4 to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
BHAEE o Z S IEIRER AR S R FE T annual general meeting. These financial statements do not reflect
REA R RIRHARS & - the final and special final dividends payable.
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—E-RF=A=+—H 31 March 2015

4. AR B EEHEABLERET 14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

FREAREFTIBEFRAARRERFE The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
NG A& E= 5 R % 20,356,000 ( = F Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the
—PU4F @ B #81,368,0007T) M FNE 21T year of HK$20,356,000 (2014: HK$81,368,000) and on the weighted
A% 2 N 15 $1630,531,600/% ( == average number of ordinary shares of 630,531,600 (2014:
—PU4F : 630,531,600/ ) 5t EF15 ° 630,531,600) in issue during the year.

HRAEEREE T —AF A -2 — No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
F=A=T—HLEFERWEBFITEREE presented for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014 as the Group
BETm MR REFABESRMZY had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during these years.

M ERRERBFEITHRHE -
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2015

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 March 2015

KAKEREL
kEF R BE
HEeF Hes - EHA
Freehold REMRE
land and Plant,
buildings, EEIR machinery,
KEE Group and leasehold ~ Construction  furniture and et
(BEFT) (HK$'000) buildings in progress other equipment Total
RZZE—mEMA[—H At 1 April 2014
BEN Cost 802,871 194,273 1,036,077 2,033,221
S Accumulated depreciation
NORE and impairment (246,098) - (769,104) (1,015,202)
REFE Net carrying amount 556,773 194,273 266,973 1,018,019
RZE—WFMA—H At 1 April 2014, net of
EHBRENE accumulated depreciation
SR and impairment 556,773 194,273 266,973 1,018,019
NE Additions 15 23,124 14,479 37,618
HE Disposals - - (639) (639)
Eiais Write-offs - - (326) (326)
B Transfers 200,269 (201,860) 1,591 -
EREREAYE Transfer to investment properties
(Ki#16) (note 16) (36,704) - - (36,704)
RNEEWERE Depreciation provided during the year (26,897) - (41,340) (68,237)
P& 5 = Exchange realignment (1,818) 232 80 (1,506)
RZZE—RF=A=+—H " At31 March 2015, net of
Bk EFINE accumulated depreciation
SEREN and impairment 691,638 15,769 240,818 948,225
WZZE—RAF=A=1+—H At31 March 2015
H#N Cost 963,952 15,769 1,043,507 2,023,228
KEHTE Accumulated depreciation
Y RE! and impairment (272,314) - (802,689) (1,075,003)
REFE Net carrying amount 691,638 15,769 240,818 948,225

RIEEEBMRLT 2015 F]R
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—E-RF=A=+—H 31 March 2015
15. 9% - MERREE) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
—ZET-FE=A=+—H 31 March 2014
KRR
REF R BE
HERT e R
Freehold REMRE
land and Plant,
buildings, EEIR machinery,
PN Group and leasehold Construction furniture and @t
(B%Fir) (HK$'000) buildings in progress  other equipment Total
RZE—=#NA—-H At 1 April 2013
R Cost 793,828 103,516 1,000,793 1,898,137
ZEHME Accumulated depreciation
LA and impairment (219,491) - (718,113) (937,604)
FREE Net carrying amount 574337 103,516 282,680 960,533
RZZE—=FNA—H" At 1 April 2013, net of
ENBREANE accumulated depreciation
YoRE and impairment 574,337 103,516 282 680 960,533
NE Additions 31 89,951 25,931 115,913
HE Disposals - - (458) (458)
R Write-offs - (14) (207) (221)
b Transfers - (1,108) 1,108 -
REEHERE Depreciation provided during the year (24,113) - (47,273) (71,386)
0 B Exchange realignment 6,518 1,928 5,192 13,638
RZE—WUE=A=+—H" At31 March 2014, net of
ENBREANE accumulated depreciation
LoRE and impairment 556,773 194,273 266,973 1,018,019
R-Z-NE=f=1—H At 31 March 2014
AR Cost 802,871 194,273 1,036,077 2,033,221
ZEHE Accumulated depreciation
KA and impairment (246,098) - (769,104) (1,015,202)
FEFE Net carrying amount 556,773 194,273 266,973 1,018,019
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—ZT—RF=A=+—H 31 March 2015
15. 9% - RERREE) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
BRER LM AEEFAREKAERE LT The Group's freehold land and buildings, and leasehold buildings
REF  REEEF2OMAT : included above are analyzed as follows:
REH Group
CE#FT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014
T a R LETF Leasehold buildings held under:
HEEE 2P ERY Medium term leases in Hong Kong 10,283 10,739
EEBIMER Z P EIEZH Medium term leases outside Hong Kong 594,869 455,715
605,152 466,454
TERBUIMIE 2 Freehold land and buildings
IKAERETH RIET held outside Hong Kong 86,486 90,319
691,638 556,773
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2015

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Company
(HK$'000)

EMRHMERE
Furniture and
other equipment

—E—RF=A=+—H

RZE—mFEPA—A -

31 March 2015

At 1 April 2014,

Bk RFTITE net of accumulated depreciation 246
REETERE Depreciation provided during the year (98)
R-ZE—RFE=A=+—8" At 31 March 2015,

BB EHTE net of accumulated depreciation 148
RZZE-—RF=A=+—H At 31 March 2015

[B&N Cost 2,460

ZEHTE Accumulated depreciation (2,312)
IR FAE Net carrying amount 148
—E-mF=A=+—AH 31 March 2014
RZZE—=FWA—H - At 1 April 2013,

Bk ERITE net of accumulated depreciation 344
REZITERE Depreciation provided during the year (98)
RZE—mF=A=1+—01" At 31 March 2014,

Bk EFITE net of accumulated depreciation 246
R-E—NF=ZA=+—H At 31 March 2014

R AR Cost 2,460

REtinE Accumulated depreciation (2,214)
BREHE Net carrying amount 246
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Notes to Financial Statements
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16. &YW 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

AEH Group
CEETT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014
REVRRAE Carrying amount at beginning of year - -
HEGYE - BEMERE Transfer from property, plant and equipment

(K1:£15) (note 15) 36,704 _
EReIEM L HER Transfer from prepaid land lease payments

(Kiat17) (note 17) 212
NEEEE) Fair value changes 12,520 -
BE 5 FF K Exchange realignment (198) -
R=A=1+—BMNEAE Carrying amount at 31 March 49,238 -

REE R E WL BARE K JA A #22
KA o

AEERENERESENEZME - 55
B E RS R R B AR T3 -
AEBREMERBEBILNBEEERME
BB EFEREXBERERAFME
mE RZE-—RAF=A=t+—HZEH*
{& (£ & 8 #549,238,0007T ° 7~ & B & 12
ESFgREREIEEMAEAEE
WMEZINEMEE - BB ZRERETISA
B BB BUMAREEARBEEER
o ARREREEGF - RANFEN B H
SETHERLEERR MEESRER
BRMETT R ©

KREYMEDREBERKEHBNIBETFE=7 -
BREAME 2 #E— LB R YRR T
35(a) °

RIEEEBMRLT 2015 F]R

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland China and
are held under medium term leases.

The investment properties of the Group were determined as industrial
properties in Mainland China, based on the nature, characteristics
and risks of each property. The investment properties of the Group
were revalued on 31 March 2015 based on valuations performed by
Cushman & Wakefield Valuation Advisory Services (HK) Limited, an
independent firm of professionally qualified valuers, at HK$49,238,000.
Each year, the Group’s management decide to appoint which external
valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
The Group’s management have discussions with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results once a year when the
valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating

leases, further summary details of which are included in note 35(a) to
the financial statements.
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—ZE—RF=A=1+—H 31 March 2015
16. REWHE (&) 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
ATEER Fair value hierarchy
TRINRAEEBRENME L N TEAERE The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of
- the Group’s investment properties:
R-ZB-HF=A=+—H
WA FE RRA
Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2015 using
RERMSE BEATEE EATAHE
ZEE WABE WABE
(%8—18) (8=f8) (8=F8)
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable
REH Group active markets inputs inputs et
(B8 TFT) (HK$'000) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ATIEE Z&E % AF¥E  Recurring fair value

e measurement for:
TEME Industrial properties - - 49,238 49,238
TR F-EBRE _BzBEVEIMAF During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
Bxt28EE  TEfE=BE AgEH (= between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
TP : f|) o (2014: Nil).
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—ZT—RF=A=+—H 31 March 2015
16. REMHE(E) 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
NEEBR(E) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
LT RIEEMEMEMAGETEREE Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key
BASEZME - inputs to the valuation of investment properties:
BEATRAHE
AR 55 (hn4E
EER* Significant Fi9E)
Valuation unobservable Range (weighted
techniques inputs average)
IEME FHR FHES 75 #5359,0007T
Industrial properties EE (#A) HK$359,000
Term and Term rent
reversion approach (per month)
FHIR R 7
Term yield (%)
EEAe 75 1316,0007T
(BAR) HK$316,000
Reversionary rent
(per month)
G 7.5
Reversionary yield
(%)
RNEFBTEYEZ AN EIMERINZEE - The fair value of the Group’s industrial properties is determined using
BBAFHNERONLET  KEEK the income approach, more specifically, a term and reversion analysis,
BIRERANBE I AERE Wt RELY by taking into account the net rental income derived from the existing
WA ESEEWRAEHEENERE - RE tenancy with due allowance for the reversionary income potential of the
REEEANREBEEBRTERN - N EE tenancy, which are then capitalized into the value at an appropriate
HENRFHBES RERHES 2 FHEBEBE capitalization rate. The fair value measurement is positively correlated
AR EFHRGRERIEF KRR EAHEHE to the term rent and reversionary rent and negatively correlated to term
Rz - yield and reversionary yield.
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17. AR L EER

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

17.PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

AEH Group
CEBTT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014
REYRREE Carrying amount at beginning of year 48,624 44,823
N Additions - 6,053
R EYE(HE16) Transfer to investment properties (note 16) (212) -
NS B 6 Amortized during the year (1,544) (2,815)
IE A= Exchange realignment 41 563
R=ZA=+—HHEEE Carrying amount at 31 March 46,909 48,624
MENEBD BRI Current portion included in

A& EEIER deposits, prepayments and

E b fEUR BRI (I 7223) other receivables (note 23) (1,540) (1,940)
IEMENEL Non-current portion 45,369 46,684

AEBE LA EMN I HEER 2D

The Group'’s prepaid land lease payments included above are analyzed

T - as follows:
TEE Group
(B FT) (HK$°000) 2015 2014
FrisEmFEr L EE K Prepaid land lease payments held under:
B 2 R EIRL Medium term leases in Hong Kong 13,169 13,565
ERBAIMEE Z Medium term leases outside
FRHAZZ A Hong Kong 33,740 35,059
46,909 48624
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Notes to Financial Statements
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18. & & 18. GOODWILL
AEH Group
(BETFT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014
[EES Goodwill 94,931 94,931
BERENR Impairment testing of goodwill

HEBANELCHEIETETHER
BETTRERAR - ZFMBAR Z A E
TRIIRBERBEIEET - HEM
AHREREFAANRFYREERE
e ERAEEHENTIERRBERY
BERRFHEE - BRAENGIERBRT
EFUALRBEFENRE  RBEROHTE
H o M METRR AR ITIR X E R6%
(ZZF—mF : 6%) (FA1) - ARBRIARIM
BRAZBERR - AFHRZBASRE
BREIDHH -

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to
certain subsidiaries for impairment testing. The recoverable amount
of the subsidiaries has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period. The key assumptions for the value in
use calculation include the expected growth rate and discount rate.
The financial budgets are prepared reflecting current and prior years
performance and development expectations. The discount rate applied
to the cash flow projections is 6% (2014: 6%) which is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant subsidiaries. The cash
flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate
of 3%.

19. R B ARIZRE 19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
¥ /N Company
(B¥For) (HK$000) 2015 2014
LTI - BRAE Unlisted shares, at cost 172,370 172,370
U B A RIBR R 58 Due from subsidiaries, net 1,126,004 1,089,457
FESTHT B A A BR X Due to subsidiaries (561,581) (521,901)
IERENE D Non-current portion 736,793 739,926
FEUR— T/ A BIBR 5K Due from a subsidiary included in
BIEERBEEN current assets - 216,429
736,793 956,355
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19. R B AR 2 RE (&)

BB AR ZRABEAEER - 5T
ME QR Z BRRBRB YRR ITM SN R
S - HERKE A E 2 RRHREETI R A
BB AR BIFLERENER  ARF
BEERHREHR T —EAARRRINZSE
TR BR-_FT-NE=-A=1+—HEW
—ME A FIBRFEME216,429,0007TH 7%
FEW— P B A RIRR RIR B REE

R-ZTE—RAF=ZA=+—H  BEK
ETHEBRARERAGTRAERELS
#100,400,0007T( — & — M F: B &
90,400,0007T) °

FA-BLEWRETHBRRKRRXER
{8 7 #10,000,00070( = & — MU 4 :
7 %6,000,0007T ) HA@AKR@ERE
#212,8330007t( — T — W F: B K
203,087,0007T)  MEE B D Z B EFH
BARZEESFE -

TEMBRARZFHIEHIINEIOEI3R

20. RBHE DR ZRE

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured. The balances with
certain subsidiaries bear interest at prevailing market rates. As
the balances with subsidiaries arose from advances to/from the
subsidiaries for the purpose of operational financing, the Company
does not intend to demand settlement of the amounts involved within
12 months from the end of the reporting period, except for an amount
due from a subsidiary of HK$216,429,000 as at 31 March 2014,
which was repayable on demand.

As at 31 March 2015, there was an impairment of HK$100,400,000
(2014: HK$90,400,000) made on amounts due from certain
subsidiaries.

During the vyear, impairment losses of HK$10,000,000 (2014:
HK$6,000,000) were recognized for amounts due from certain
subsidiaries, with a total gross carrying amount of HK$212,833,000
(2014: HK$203,087,000). The impairment provision had taken into
account the net asset values of the subsidiaries.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 160 to
163.

20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

AEH Group
(BEFT) (HK$°000) 2015 2014
JEIHEEFE Share of net assets 36,310 32,706

ENBANRIZERHRELAESAE &
i 2B R—BR=FTRRAIZHM - 5
o R-_ZEZ—RAF=ZA=Z+—8" EH
Bt 42 X 5] BR 708 #58,075,0007T ( — Z — 1Y
& 1 BM7,898,000L ) EREAEBNE S K&
ZRIERA - RIS RR M 2685 -

124 muemsmAE 2015 €35

The balances due to the associates are trade related, unsecured,
interest-free and normally settled on a term of 30 days. Accordingly, as
at 31 March 2015, the amounts due to associates of HK$8,075,000
(2014: HK$7,898,000) are included in the trade and bills payables, as
disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements.
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—E-RF=A=+—H 31 March 2015
20. REEERNT 2 BE (&) 20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

RSB BE AR ARTEARSE All of the Group's associates are corporate entities registered in the

AT ]) s R A B R B 8 2 1 People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and operating in Mainland

EEAN o China.

N A2 FFRERINT - Particulars of the associates are as follows:

REEEL
CRITRATEE EREDL
BWER Percentage of
Nominal value of ownership interest FEEK
=41 issued share/ attributable Principal

Name paid-up capital to the Group activities

BILTEEEERER AR 1,520,000 7T 25 BlE R IHE

Foshan Fu Xiong Foundry Co., Ltd. US$1,520,000 TREBGE I E W

Manufacture and
sale of iron casting
products

BRIl TIEfEE B R EE B R AR 800,000 7T 25 L EE

Foshan Shunde Fu Xiong Machinery US$800,000 Dormant

Company, Limited ©

Bt Notes:

(1) EMRARZEEMBEHREIFEHEBLKE (1) The above companies whose statutory financial statements are not audited
FTRT 275 T sk & ok & 5T RM =5 75 P B PR A8 4% by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst &
HAbpk B AR © Young global network.

(2) EMARA=ZA=+—HAHE®REAH (2) The above companies use 31 March as their reporting date to conform with
AFFEEER AR ZHREAHE - their holding company’s reporting date.

(3) EXATEBEMBER - (3) The English company name is translated for identification purpose only.

FA - AEEIWEN—BERRWERKE The Group received no dividend income (2014: HK$3,148,000) from

WA(ZZ—H4 « #%3,148,0000T) ° an associate during the year.
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20. ABE RRI 2 RE () 20.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
TRINRAEB R B WIEE RO ZE QT The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the
KBTS AR AEEE Group’s associates that are not individually material:
CEEFT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014
(BN B FEF)E Share of the associates’ profit for the year 3,561 6,638
(HEsE AR EMAE ERE Share of the associates’ other comprehensive income 43 559
(BN R A2 S Share of the associates’ total comprehensive income 3,604 7,197
REBRE S N TIIRE Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
BREEARE investments in the associates 36,310 32,706
21. 78 21.INVENTORIES
REE Group
GEMTFT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014
R Raw materials 238,677 239,985
TR/ Work in progress 246,550 258,657
2K Finished goods 188,907 314,465
674,134 813,107
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

22. BWE S REBERM 22.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

EH Group

CEETT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014

BUWE 5 N EIEIRE Trade and bills receivables 825,680 901,618

VEREL Impairment (71,536) (70,216)
754,144 831,402

BEFZESEF—RA/RERS  RITE
BRERME - AEERBEBENEF 2
XENRGEBRETEFPEER  FEH—
BE=ZTRE—BNTX - NEERIUE
RERRIE S EE R B EUR - BRE
BRI ERE

AR bl EBHMASENREEKE S NE
BRAAAEDHMEFPHAERK  #URBE
AOEREERR - NEBWERZFH
i A AR AR ER 2 m
A ERWE 5 M EBERAILAHFE o

FEWE 5 N EBERFREREZBNT

Trading terms with customers are either cash on delivery, bank bills
or on credit. The Group grants credit to customers based on their
respective business strength and creditability, with credit periods of 30
days to 180 days in general. The Group adopts strict control policies
over credit terms and receivables that serve to minimize credit risk.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade and
bills receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there
is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances. The
trade and bills receivables are non-interest-bearing.

The movements in impairment allowance for trade and bills receivables

are as follows:

rEE Group
CBEETT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014
REH] At beginning of year 70,216 70,125
BRI RN ARE Impairment losses charged to

B FRE(Ha27) the income statement, net (note 7) 2,214 355
T AR B Y& 58 Amounts written off as uncollectible (1,665) (1,666)
bE 5 Exchange realignment 771 1,402
R=A=+—8H At 31 March 71,536 70,216
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22. BRE S REBRR(E) 22.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

ELEMERE S REBRRFFERER
BEEEERBIRERKE S EREE
75 150 430,000T( — & — [0 F : B #
62,179,0007T ) * ERBER < REEAR
75 #67,555,00000( — ZF — /O F : B
70,097,0007T) » EVEMERR B # 2 Uk
B REBEERPRAENAE 2R K
TEEAR AT R FEUBR R 2 B -

WRRBREREWE S R RBRIR
SABIEAFEZREOMT

Included in the above impairment allowance for trade and bills
receivables is an allowance for individually impaired trade receivables
of HK$59,430,000 (2014: HK$62,179,000) with a gross carrying
amount before provision of HK$67,555,000 (2014: HK$70,097,000).
The individually impaired trade and bills receivables relate to
customers that were in default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments and only a portion of the receivables is expected to be
recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables, based on the
payment due date, that are not considered to be impaired is as follows:

rEE Group

(BEFor) (HK$'000) 2015 2014

KRENER (I R B EASLRE) Current (neither past due nor impaired) 513,845 605,426

wHALR AR Less than 90 days past due 86,388 97,036

mHNL+—Z—FA/N\TX 91 to 180 days past due 45,269 55,685

mHBe—aN\TX Over 180 days past due 108,642 73,255
754,144 831,402

I AR 6 H SR (B 2 8 W R TR e s B 4 2
HIN R BP »

B A B I SR E 2 RUGRRADY kB T
HAEBAERIRHLHNBULES - &
RBELSR  ARREERR BANEE
BERUVESAEE  BRFERIDPER
AR - HBE A S RIEHLRE
B

128 mugmsmAd 2015 3%

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2015

23.DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

AEH RATE
Group Company
(B¥For) (HK$'000) 2015 2014 2015 2014
HES SN Deposits and prepayments 37,056 35,714 417 417
TER T HIRE R - Prepaid land lease payments,
mENEs Y (MEE17) current portion (note 17) 1,540 1,940 - -
H b pEURBR 3R Other receivables 32,763 21,985 1,570 306
T ORUE Less: Impairment (2,661) - - -
68,698 59,639 1,987 723

Hib MRS ER B EIT

The movements in impairment allowance for other receivables are as

follows:

rEH Group
CBEETT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014
REH] At beginning of year - -
BRI RN AREEE Impairment losses charged to the income

SRER(MEET7) statement, net (note 7) 2,654 -
B 3, AL Exchange realignment 7 -
R=A=+—H At 31 March 2,661 -

£ Lt E b fEURBR R E B E B I Y Included in the above impairment allowance for other receivables is an
BB RIRE E th B R R BB
2,661,0007C(ZF—F : &) - HpPREE
Al 2 AREE A8 2,661,000 (=Z — M

FE)

allowance for individually impaired other receivables of HK$2,661,000
(2014: Nil) with a gross carrying amount before provision of
HK$2,661,000 (2014: Nil).

Except for other receivables of HK$2,661,000 (2014: Nil), none
of these assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets

ik L fth B U BR SROB #52,661,0007C( — & —
P04« )5 - R EEEMREBIMSRNE -

AR RS BB E S N o B fm e BAfF 3 EE included in these balances relate to receivables for which there was no
7 FEUWBRSL - recent history of default.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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24.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

EHE Group

CEBTT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014

EIRIRITIFR - FERBIE D Pledged bank deposits, non-current portion - 3,265

WIRRITIE R KB Pledged bank deposits, current portion 58,341 79,473
58,341 82,738

EEERETHEB AR 2 ERRTHE
X HApE#36,561,0007T (= F — U4 -
78 #640,853,0007T ) 3 1 #2 R 1A o B K B
RITHRTEPIEBEAREERNERTE
o B#17,920,0007T( ZE— M : B
36,260,0007T ) AFFER 3 4 T &R AY
RITARER  ZFEELCABNEZR
FHBERRA - R %3,860,000( = F
— U4 : B #5,625,0007T ) BIEER T
TREEMZBERAEMERS - UK

AR -

5 PR 1T 17 507 UM 3 43 018 040 8
BISBIERT -

130 mmzmsmAE 2015 3%

Balances included pledged bank deposits of certain subsidiaries,
including HK$36,561,000 (2014: HK$40,853,000) for securing bank
loans granted by banks in Mainland China to customers to purchase
the Group’s products, HK$17,920,000 (2014: HK$36,260,000) for
securing the issuance of bank acceptance notes, included in the
trade and bills payables, to suppliers, and HK$3,860,000 (2014:
HK$5,625,000) as a guarantee for payments of construction costs of
industrial buildings and rental of premises, and tendering of contracts.

The pledged bank deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default.
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25. B RBRTERF

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

25.CASH AND BANK BALANCES

rEH ¥ N
Group Company
(CBEFT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014 2015 2014
Re NIRTEF Cash and bank balances 609,799 515,285 14,009 8,911
F SRS ER R Bank deposits with
JRESm B original maturity of
TR=EAZ less than three months
FEHFR when acquired 268,798 279,008 218,560 -
HeRBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 878,597 794,293 232,569 8911
RIFRES IR Bank deposits with
JRESm B original maturity of
tBm={E Az more than three months
FHIFER when acquired 82,842 49,586 - -
#BI8e MIRTTHETF Total cash and bank balances 961,439 843,879 232,569 8911

Wtz -

RITIFEFRARITE A FFOF B RGR
BFE - RFAEERSOFTR M
EYH-—RENEACENERE
o AW LATE BATF R R R AR M SR 1T
REFREEZETANHLBEZN
REREUH S, o $RITAEFIF UL S5
HROREZBERRT -

REEBERAR 2015 FH

Note: The cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and six months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
time deposit rates or rates correlated to a certain percentage of
local interbank deposit rate. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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RBEMR 2 EBNE S REBRRFIZIA
BB EZRESTIT -

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

26. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the payment due date, is as follows:

rEE Group

(E#EFT) (HK$°000) 2015 2014

REIER Current 218,335 321,865

—ENTK 1 t0 90 days 56,277 66,565

Nt—RE—EBN\TX 91 to 180 days 7,481 1,823

BE—antx Over 180 days 12,628 12,407
294,721 402,660

ENE S RERERRIL TS - BN
BINEBERRETREERNBERR
FRIA B 8,075,000t ( — T — M4 « B
7,898,0007T) © A RIERB/=TRAX
o ZEFEBERRRHTEIERP
HV BB GRFRARAT -

27. At EN R R TR E

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. Included in the
trade and bills payables are trade payables of HK$8,075,000 (2014:
HK$7,898,000) due to associates which are repayable within 30 days,
which represent similar credit terms to those offered by the associates
to their major customers.

27.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

TEH ¥ NN
Group Company
(BE¥TFor) (HK$'000) 2015 2014 2015 2014
DU EET S Deposits received 51,637 60,288 62 59
JEErRER Accruals and
HEmaE other liabilities 146,949 168,901 4,440 4,858
198,586 229,189 4,502 4917

RAHMENERREFRENSHAE
WAHIHE -

132 mwzmsmaAd 2015 £3%

The financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals are
non-interest-bearing.
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29.

Notes to Financial Statements

—HF=A=+—H 31 March 2015
FTREBRITER 28.INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
BRRAE
Effective
KEHE Group interest rate EIHA
(BE#For) (HK$'000) (%) Maturity 2015 2014
RITEREER Bank loans repayable 1.4 2015
— RN within one year, unsecured (2014: 1.6) (2014:2014) 296,618 290,203
BERRFIZE
Effective
AT Company interest rate E|HA
CEEFT) (HK$'000) (%) Maturity 2015 2014
IRITEREZEH Bank loans repayable 1.5 2015
—FR - IR within one year, unsecured (2014: 1.5) (2014:2014) 215,000 210,000

A B R AR 2 EERETEROATH
AESR

ERBENEE

AEBESEZMBARRIERS 1R
HR—_ZTRF LA -BETRKESED
BEMAICESEZHBARER 2B
DEER - RIFERE BEAREFER
RARHBEFERKEN - RAEHTIER
BEBET - &% R458 - EE55F655
RN FERE - R RFTEHMTAKEE
ABOFYAFE -

EffEIZkAEEZARZERKRERDH
o RERNRERESHZEEEE  UNER
BegZE8aF A REBAHERERE
AZTRHEE - ZEERMEARA &
AEENEEEROF ZESRERTE
%At Bl BB

ZEHBIZAERR - BASTHANES
BHER - RATERRREERROY
2L,

RIEEEBMRLT 2015 F]R

29.

The Group’s and the Company’s unsecured bank loans are at floating
rates.

DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan operate the Old Scheme, covering
substantially all of its employees who were recruited by the Taiwanese
subsidiaries before the implementation of the Labour Act on 1 July
2005. Under the Old Scheme, the employees are entitled to retirement
benefits annually based on an accumulated base point, which is
determined by their years of service, with a maximum of 45 points
multiplied by the average month salary for the final six months of
employment on attainment of a retirement age ranging from 55 to 65.

The Old Scheme requires the Group to make monthly contributions
to the retirement fund. The fund is administered by the Committee
and is deposited under the Committee’s name with a government
approved financial institution, which acts as the trustee. The assets
held by the trustee are separate from those of the Group. The Committee
is responsible for the determination of the investment strategy
of the scheme.

The scheme is exposed to interest rate risk, the risk of changes in the
life expectancy for pensioners, equity market risk and credit risk.
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29. EBEBANEMEE) 29. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

RO BB E R ERBRANEERER
BfhE - THaEREEERAZAER
BRI S E B IEEER N BR AR
“E-RE=ZA=+—R#T - TR
BUREBRERAEETR -

RBEMRZ TRREMRRNOT -

The most recent actuarial valuations of the plan assets and the present
value of the defined benefit obligations were carried out at 31 March
2015 by Greatfine Wealth Management Consulting Inc., a qualified
actuary recognized by the Actuarial Institute in Taiwan, using the
projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

2015 2014
FrR= Discount rate 2% 2%
JEHiE eE R K Expected rate of salary increases 1% 1%
BEHERBTRTEHEENTEAES The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan assets was

#15,377,0000( = & — 4 F: B ¥
16,966,0007T) © BiE L EEMBEEEN
BEEBEEIFHROEN42% (ZF—
PU4F @ 42%) ° K2 Bh A% 21,033,0007T 1
TEEARA ISR AR TS BAL7 55 )RR ©

TERABREPRMERNEABRRNEE
BURIED T

HK$15,377,000 (2014: HK$16,966,000) and that the actuarial value
of these assets represented 42% (2014: 42%) of the benefits that had
accrued to qualifying employees. The deficiency of HK$21,033,000 is
expected to be cleared over the remaining service period of 17 years.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at the
end of the reporting period is shown below:

2015
ERER EFEEF
EfEEm/ BEEM
(R2) 0:2)
gz Sy Increase/ [z 2 Increase/
Increase  (decrease) of Decrease  (decrease) of
in rate defined benefit in rate defined benefit
(B For) (HK$'000) % obligations % obligations
WIRE Discount rate 05 (1,357) (0.5) 1,495
KRG E Future salary increase 0.5 1,502 (0.5) (1,375)

134 mwnsmsmad 2015 £3F
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29. EBEEANEFEE) 29. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)
2014

EEREF EEEF

BEEm EEEm

(B2) (B2

Eb =18 N Increase/ L ERE D Increase/

Increase  (decrease) of Decrease  (decrease) of

in rate defined benefit in rate defined benefit

(BT or) (HK$'000) % obligations % obligations
WK Discount rate 0.5 (1,661) (0.5) 1,837
RERFEER Future salary increase 05 1,847 (0.5) (1,684)
PSR SNT  TIRIEEREEREERS The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a
RS EFSEEHRETEENEED method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligations
OB HERT o as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the

end of the reporting period.
e lRamkPERANEETREREsE The total expenses recognized in the consolidated income statement in
N respect of the scheme is as follows:

(B¥For) (HK$000) 2015 2014

B HARRAS AR AN Current service cost 562 656
FBRR AR Interest cost 527 497
FaE R Net benefit expenses 1,089 1,153
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29. EEERNEEE) 29. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)
EEENETERIEEENATELE The movements in the defined benefit oligations and the fair value of
N plan assets are as follows:
215
HEERNBRRGHA AR ERENEN B/ (B8)
Pension cost charged to the income statement Remeasurement gainsf(losses) in other comprehensive income
ARt b4
FRRL  BREL
il tARf
BE89  REED 2EkE
A Actuarial  Actuaria It
HE &R changes  changes Subtotal
ERFE  Sublofa arsing fom arsing from incluged
HEY  BBAA Net includedin  EHER  changesin  changesin  BBEE  inohe  EifE  EiEE =
559 Group At beginning Senvice interest  the income Benefit demographic  financial  Experience comprehensive Contribution  Exchange ~ =1-A
(#4771 (K$000) of year cost  expense  statement paid  assumptions assumptions  adjustments income by employer  realignment At 31 Mar
FEEHEE  Defined beneftobigations 40,000 52 CTU NV ¢ CO K) (100 11 50 ol - 081 %40
SEEEATE  Fairvalue of lan assels (16.966) - (34 (W) 45T - - (107) (07 2% o (1B
BHEE Benet ity B0 562 57 1089 - (100) 141 3 B % GO 2,08
2014
HEERNBRRAHA AR ERENEN B/ (BR)
Pension cost charged to the income statement Remeasurement gainsf(losses) in other comprehensive income
ADfist b4
FRRL  BREL
il N tARf
BE89  REED tEkE
A Actuarial ~ Actuarial It
flE &R changes  changes Subtotal
EESE  Subtota atising from  arising from included
HEY BEAA Net incldedin  CEA  changesin  changesin  BBEE  inoher EIME  EXER B
559 Group At beginning Senvice interest  the income Benefit demographic  financial  Experience comprehensive  Contribution  Exchange ~ =1-A
(#4771 (HK$000) of year cost  expense  statement paid  assumptions assumptions  adjustments income by employer  realignment At 31 Mar
TERHEE  Defined beneft obligations 13657 656 % 14% (3.289) (18 (1,109) 29 (1L072) - (795 40000
SHEEATE  Fairvale of plan asels (169%9) - (302 3 3 - - (108 (08) (32 B (169%)
A Benef iabilty %658 66 97 1,153 - (186)  (L109) 111 (1,180) (3222) (37 23034
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29. ERBNEEE)

REEGEEERBE L A TEFESEN
T

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

29. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

The major categories of the fair value of the total plan assets of the
Group are as follows:

2015 2014
e NIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 17% 22%
AT A Equity instruments 67% 64%
EEITA Debt instruments 16% 14%
100% 100%

S T T B B O S PO 0 A
£ H ¢4 308 92,880,007 F — 70
% : B¥3,150,0007T) °

RBEMKR - ERERNE T2 FHRER
BAL6EF (=T N4« 15%) -

REEBERAR 2015 FH

The Group expects to make a contribution of HK$2,880,000 (2014
HK$3,150,000) to the defined benefit scheme during the next financial
year.

The average duration of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the
reporting period is 15 years (2014: 15 years).

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015 137




R E e Notes to Financial Statements

—E-RF=A=+—H 31 March 2015
30. IEFERIE 30. DEFERRED TAX
FERN - ELEFRBEGELREESSHOT - The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year

are as follows:

EEHIBEEE Deferred tax liabilities
MEEMR M

KEH Group Revaluation 4% Withholding et
(GERT ) (HK$'000) of properties  Provisions tax Total
R-ZE—=FmH—H At 1 April 2013 - - 11,010 11,010
REEPREERIG 2 Deferred tax charged to the

R IRF 58 income statement during

(Ffa£11) the year, net (note 11) - 236 3,519 3,755
R RFEFNE Withholding tax on repatriation

s of earnings from subsidiaries - - (2,896) (2,896)
[E H L Exchange realignment - - (133) (133)
RZZT—M4F

—A=+—HEFK At 31 March 2014 and

—F-UFEA—H 1 April 2014 - 236 11,500 11,736
REZAWERING, Deferred tax charged/(credited)

(Bt A) 2 ERERIE to the income statement

SRER(MAELL) during the year, net (note 11) - (836) 4,852 4016
AKEEREA Deferred tax charged to the

Wk k2 statement of comprehensive

EEFRTE income during the year 3,130 - - 3,130
A RFRFEZ Withholding tax on repatriation

EF of earnings from subsidiaries - - (9,729) (9,729)
PEE 5 28 Exchange realignment (50) (®) (216) (272)
RNZE—RF=A Gross deferred tax liabilities

=+—H2ZEZN recognized in the consolidated

LA BSIRR R statement of financial position

BERIARERE at 31 March 2015 3,080 (606) 6,407 8,881
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30. IERERIE (48)

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2015

30. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

EEREEE Deferred tax assets
REH Group s BIEEE it
CEMTFT) (HK$'000) Provisions Tax losses Total
RZZE—=FMBF—H At 1 April 2013 62,435 14,143 76,578
REFRWEERNG 2 Deferred tax charged to the

IREBIIRF 58 income statement during

(KtaE11) the year, net (note 11) (244) (7,253) (7,497)
B 5, R Exchange realignment 1,141 259 1,400
RZZT—MNF=A=+—HK At31 March 2014 and

—EF-UFEOA—H 1 April 2014 63,332 7,149 70,481
REGPIRERINGR 2 Deferred tax charged to the

R IEF FE income statement during

(K1at11) the year, net (note 11) (9,528) (2,041) (11,569)
PE 5 =8 Exchange realignment 75 9 84
RZZE—RF=A Gross deferred tax assets

= +—HZERR recognized in the consolidated

(R SRR R statement of financial position

BIETIEEERE at 31 March 2015 53,879 5,117 58,996

BRAEBEZHEEBEBRRESARBE
282,5850000( — & — 4 F: B &
281,208,0007T ) KR 7 Bl K BE & B
#101,531,0007C( — & — M0 F: B
98,091,0007T) + Al KB ZEB 2
ANEABZERBSEF - BRR_T—H
F=ZRA=+—BEBEZERBEFE
] BEE IR AP B K FER R B AT TE S
BB ¥20,467,000( —F — U4 : B
28,596,000t ) ) + A ER S A A2 8115
BE—ERA R - W TERT FERRF R I AT 4
EIBIEEE  WERZEEBERERRLT
MIBEE - EAERECHEESES - &
1E A %81,064,0000( Z T — U F : B
69,495,0007T) KB I8 E5 18 1 TR TR B 1R E
ERAFREE - i ESErAERAR

)

RIEEEBMRLT 2015 F]R

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$282,585,000
(2014: HK$281,208,000) and in Mainland China of HK$101,531,000
(2014: HK$98,091,000) that are available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Except
for tax losses arising in Mainland China of HK$20,467,000 (2014:
HK$28,596,000) as at 31 March 2015 to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax
losses can be utilized, deferred tax assets have not been recognized
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in those companies
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilized. Included in unrecognized tax losses are losses
of HK$81,064,000 (2014: HK$69,495,000) that will expire within five
years from the date losses arose. Other losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

30. EERE (&) 30. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

RIBFEEMEGTE - R BRERIZE
SNERERINEREETIREE KFR
10%MEH - B _TTNF-HA—HEE
BYEANR—FETLF+_A=+—HB%
EREED A o fisi o B B2 51N 3% B 3 P EE )
ERERFI BRI IRA - I AT REE A EEAY
MBHBRE - AEERFREERRER
5%510% °

BN - RIBEEINFBIED] - BSEAME
RERE IR Z SRR BU20% M8 -
At - NEEALR &K% E B
RNAIEA SN PTIREE 2 BB BRI

RZE-—RAF=ZA=+—8B KAEEE
A R B K B AR S B B X B R Bt R BE
g A B A I B MR E IE R R - H
ERRAZHAENEREZEBES Y
7 1823,785,0007T( — T — M : B
800,084,0007T) - EFR R ZEWER
BIRKAIBER A R AR BER —TENF
—A—BRE&REEUZ &) o

RZZE-—RFE=A=+—H  WEKEN
BRELEZNBERIHMBARREE
M ERMEERGEMERNETCHAR
B& HA)ERA6,821,0007T ( ZF —PU4F -
751548,087,0007T) °

AR B ) A B R K 3 2 B B 3 A P AS
M8 e

140 mwems®RAE 2015 F35

Pursuant to the New CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement was
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates during the year were 5%
or 10%.

In addition, pursuant to Taiwan withholding tax regulations, a 20%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to non-resident
shareholders. Therefore, the Group is liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Taiwan in
respect of earnings generated.

At 31 March 2015, no deferred tax has been recognized for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China,
of which the aggregate amount of temporary differences has not
been recognized totalled approximately HK$823,785,000 (2014:
HK$800,084,000). In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute their earnings accrued after 1
January 2008 in the foreseeable future.

At 31 March 2015, the aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with the investments in subsidiaries established in Taiwan
for which deferred tax liabilities arising from withholding tax have
not been recognized totalled approximately HK$46,821,000 (2014:
HK$48,087,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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31. gA& 31. SHARE CAPITAL

(B¥For) (HK$'000) 2015 2014
JERE Authorized:
1,000,000,0000% & 37 A% 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares

BB EE0.107T of HK$0.10 each 100,000 100,000
EETREEER Issued and fully paid:
630,531,6000% 630,531,600

—EF—JOF : (2014: 630,531,600)
630,531,600/% ) &A% ordinary shares
B E®0.107T of HK$0.10 each 63,053 63,053

32. B 32. SHARE OPTIONS

ARAERABRRARBE_T—M4F
NAZ+THEBA(ERKBEE D ETZERRE
FRG L2 SRR 8 (T B ARt
g2 - ARANR-_ZEZT_F/\A-+=H
Rz E— R ERN —F——FN\A
—t+=R3H-

RIBBIEE ARRESARNBEFE
ER2EEZNBREARBARREH
BT BAY - MERRE P AT GRS M
TR B - RIFRE AR BRI 2 B At
THETHA AR E KRBRRAE LI
SZHER o

BRI 2 BRI T

(@) BW

HAEMZ2EANKEEEL S
AYEL B R T LA SRR S SR -

RIEEEBMRLT 2015 F]R

The Company has adopted a new share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) approved by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 24 September 2014 (the “Adoption
Date”). The Company’s previous share option scheme adopted on 23
August 2002 expired on 23 August 2012.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company may, at
their discretion, invite any participants to take up options to subscribe
for fully paid ordinary shares in the Company subject to the terms and
conditions stipulated therein. Share options under the Share Option
Scheme do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholder’s meetings.

The particulars of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

(a) Purpose

As rewards or incentives for the contribution or potential
contribution to the Group from the eligible participants.
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32. BRE(E)

(b) BEA

(M)

(ii)

(ii)

AREBALAAIRK B A AR R
(IRBBEEE 2 ER)HHE
BB RIEH 2 E M ARZ -

(@) HAES(TwmERITHIFN
17 BREMABIIFNTE
F)REE(TwEZBER
B sk

(b) EREHEZEMRA K

RFBAEBETMKE SERER
P R BK PR A B R 2 ) 2 AR 2 )
PREITZIEAERFAA - &

AEBEMKE HERIZERKR
KR IER BRI S 2 (R RFZ :

() EMEBHAIERH - BT

RERZBA  RBEAD

T A Sk EREE AT 5T
R SE A B SR AT
> BXERRHEMEE
BEEE R IR -

(b)

© EBEmERBZEMNHER X

(d) ERFIRBEMES -

142 mupsEEaRAE 2015 £

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2015

32. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b) Participants

(M)

(ii)

(i)

(a)

(b)

(whether executive or

including any independent non-executive director) and

any director non-executive,

employee (whether full time or part time) of, or

any individual for the time being seconded to work for,

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder (as

defined under the Share Option Scheme) or any company

controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

any holder of any securities issued by any member of the

Group or any controlling shareholder or any company

controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor or distributor of,

any person or entity that provides research, development

or other technological support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services in respect of

business operations to,

any supplier of goods or services to, or

any customer of goods or services of,

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or a

company controlled by a controlling shareholder.
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32.BR#EE)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

BERAE)

SRBREAENS  2EABRKEH—
73k Z MR B IA L ERI R B2 EE PR
2 EAIRE -

AFRITEBRRHE LR
WANEHR AR - 5% 1%63,063,1608E

B (EERARREETRALI0%)
AT E#IT -

BUSEATERES LR

BRARIB R IR AT 8 2 IR Z 1T HL A
S B2 EAEEA+—EARE
ERHBREE R L) - REBAER
8| AN R BE ] B A 8 B i T & PR
By zBERE(REDEE BTk
WARIT IR BB ) T DATTIE - PREETT
Ko 317 2 Bty LIRS BB AR A
BEEITRANL% °

TREBREDEZER 2R

HERLEBREZ BRATFR - AR

RAEEFRE P E R BE B
L

RIEEEBMRLT 2015 F]R

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

32. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Participants (continued)

For the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, the participants
shall include any company controlled by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above classes of participants.

Maximum number of ordinary shares available for issue

A total of 63,053,160 ordinary shares are available for issue
which represent 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of ordinary shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company to
any participant (including cancelled, exercised and outstanding
share options), in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the ordinary shares in issue unless
otherwise approved in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme.

Period within which the ordinary shares must be taken up under
a share option

Within ten years from the date of grant of the share option or
such shorter period as the board of directors of the Company
determines at the time of grant.
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32. BR#EE)

®

(g

(h)

144

BREETEISERENRELR
(mA)

R EBRAER - KRR ESR/KE
ERBRERITEAMERE Z&EH
PR(aAE) -
BABRESNISERIROAR

ERHBEEZOZAR(2EZA)
M+ARANBEXBRZIEL - &

XENBREZOR - FHEE1.00
7TEO
EERRETEEIEE

TEBRERAT XN 2 BBRBMDTT
FEEBHARBDEETHRE @ HETE
BREEZLHTIERS

() BXANELARBELZEAR
BRAHARREBBRETE
(EHMEREHEH):

REZFHAMMAEZEXAE
BREH s BARERAE
ARBEBEFHRHE : R

(i)

i)y NAREBEZEE

RIEEBERDA 2015 FRH

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

32. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

()

(g

(h)

Minimum period, if any, for which a share option must be held
before it can be exercised

At the time of granting a share option, the board of directors of the
Company will determine the minimum period(s), if any, for which
a share option must be held before it can be exercised.

Amount payable upon acceptance of a share option and the
period within which the payment must be made

An offer for the grant of a share option must be accepted within
forty-five days inclusive of the day on which the offer was made.
The amount payable on acceptance of the offer for an option is
HK$1.00.

Basis of determining the exercise price of the share options

The exercise price per share payable on the exercise of a share
option shall be determined by the board of directors of the
Company and shall be no less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the ordinary shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of grant, which must be a
business day;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the ordinary shares of the

Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by

the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately

preceding the date of offer of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of an ordinary share of the Company.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015



BA B R R M =L

— ==
=
—=

32.

33.

—hF=A=+—H

BRE(E)

() BRETBZERM

FEREST 81 2 A U M B B B 1
AREtE -

FRA TR DB - R B
FRE - R _FT-RHF=A=+—H K
REWE(ZT—F - ) HARITERE
P

i
%M
A A BT R RS

REBHRAZ AR EBHRP 27 -

RIBEGEBRANE  TEEMBRNARAIR
K BREHW B B R A RIAR — 80K
BENBBE-TAREZERFHET
HEEZE A RESZ A B EAR0%E -
AREFBETER - MREAERBINA
BEf R R IR

RETPEEINEBECERPIGELE
DEZEG - ARBRFEARE2ETH
JB A BIZAEEE D BR8N EATE [ (1
REREIERZ#FE) EEZARBRE
R E R HEMEAL0% °

RIEEEBMRLT 2015 F]R

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

32.

33.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(i) Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme has a life of ten years commencing on
the Adoption Date.

No share option was granted, cancelled or lapsed during the year. As
at 31 March 2015, the Company had no (2014: Nil) share options
outstanding.

RESERVES

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity of the financial statements.

In accordance with the Company Law of Taiwan, Asian Plastic
Machinery Company, Limited and Chen Hsong Machinery Taiwan
Company, Limited are required to transfer a portion of their profit after
tax to a capital reserve, which is non-distributable. When the capital
reserve has accumulated to 50% of their capital, up to 50% of the
capital reserve may be capitalized. The capital reserve may be utilized
at anytime to offset any deficit.

In accordance with the Law of the PRC on Sole Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises, certain of
the Company’s Mainland China subsidiaries are required to transfer a
portion of their profit after tax to the statutory reserve fund, which are
restricted as to use, until the accumulated total reaches 50% of their
registered capital.
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33. (&) 33.RESERVES (continued)
AAT Company
8l EARERE
R E R #
Share Capital REEER
premium  redemption Retained st
(EBFT) (HK$'000) account reserve profits Total
R-Z—=FmMA—H At 1 April 2013 509,580 295 203,706 713,581
KERmF R Profit for the year and
AEFHEEEAE total comprehensive
s income for the year - - 31,432* 31,432
BEx-_Z2—=%=H Final dividend for the
—+t—BHItFEZ year ended 31 March 2013
REAIR B (M13£13) (note 13) - - (37,832) (37,832)
FRERRE B (KYiE13) Interim dividend (note 13) - - (18,916) (18,916)
RZZT—MF
—A=+—8HkK At 31 March 2014
—EF-UFEOA—H and 1 April 2014 509,580 295 178,390 688,265
KERRF R Profit for the year and
REFREMH total comprehensive
2% income for the year - - 33,465* 33,465
HE_ZT—MF=H Final dividend for the
=t—HILFEZ year ended 31 March 2014
REARR B.(HTa13) (note 13) - - (25,221) (25,221)
hEARR B (H7F13) Interim dividend (note 13) - - (7,567) (7,567)
R-T—RF
—A=+—-H At 31 March 2015 509,580 295 179,067 688,942
Y RN ETHB AR FEZWAE *  The balance includes net income from certain subsidiaries of
BB HT74481,00000( —F — U4 BEE HK$74,481,000 (2014: HK$75,612,000) and impairment on amounts
75,612,0007T) - R BtENCE THIB AT due from certain subsidiaries of HK$10,000,000 (2014: HK$6,000,000).
T2 RE B #10,000,0007T( —ZF — PO 4F -
7516,000,0007T) °
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—E-AF=ZA=1+—H 31 March 2015
4. HFARERE 34.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
REREHIR - S8 AR B RE B R At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for
aEmT in the financial statements were as follows:
rEH b N
Group Company
(BETFT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014 2015 2014
R IRITHER - Guarantees given to banks, at
BOANENEE - F1EER the maximum, for bank loans
BYRFPIEBEAREE granted to customers to
EmmMIRTTER purchase the Group's products 80,737 116,276 - -
TR EM B AR A A Facilities available to subsidiaries
EEMIRMAAIRITH for which guarantees were
EIR given to banks - - 625,893 795,827
80,737 116,276 625,893 795,827
R-T—RE=ZA=+—H XA H®L As at 31 March 2015, the guarantees given by the Company to banks
FHBAR EEMEHRAEITHEREF in connection with facilities granted to subsidiaries were utilized to the
=B X RB#131,079,0007t ( =ZF— extent of approximately HK$131,079,000 (2014: HK$141,333,000).

PU4E - 141,333,000 ) ©

35, REHYZH 35.0PERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(@) ERHAA (@) As lessor
RNREFRBEERANTHEES T The Group leases certain parts of its owner-occupied properties
DERYERIEEYE (M RENTE and investment properties (notes 15 and 16 to the financial
1582 16) A HESR o W% T i S2FH &3 statements) and machinery under operating lease arrangements.
FEZHEHREARINF—EFEERER Leases for properties and machinery are negotiated for terms
+ A A - EKR—RINERKAT ranging from 1 to 5 years and for a term of 18 months, respectively.
AXTIRES - WRBERMSRL The terms of the leases generally also require the tenants to
FHIFAEMES - pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments

according to the then prevailing market conditions.
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35. &Y =H (&) 35.0PERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
(@) ERHBAE) (a) As lessor (continued)
R-_E—FAF=R=+—8 &~&£H At 31 March 2015, the Group had total future minimum lease
RIEEE A AR 2 TR R E & receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
MHBHEY 2 &> RRA R BE falling due as follows:
™
TEHE Group
(BEFT) (HK$°000) 2015 2014
—F A Within one year 5,908 2,332
FoFEFENEF In the second to fifth years,
(BIEERME) inclusive 17,405 _
23,313 2,332
(b) fEREFEA (b) As lessee
NEFERBERKSHBOLHEESTY The Group leases certain of its properties and office equipment
EPVE VN RN EN S VN under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties and
HESET ZHERHESNFE—FEF office equipment are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 year to 8
NERRF years and for a term of 5 years, respectively.
R-E—FRF=A=+—H ' ' A&EH At 31 March 2015, the Group had total future minimum lease
BB BE KL REAEN 2 & payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as
DRRAS LR T ¢ follows:
AEE Group
(EMFor) (HK$000) 2015 2014
—FR Within one year 1,826 2,017
F_FEERF In the second to fifth years,
(PREEEMS) inclusive 234 600
2,060 2,617
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—T-hAE=A=1+—H 31 March 2015
35. REHAZHEE) 35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
() R—E—HE=FA=+—8  &AQ7 (c) As at 31 March 2015, the Company had no significant operating
WEE AL YEE(—Z— lease commitments (2014: Nil).
) e
36. &R 36. COMMITMENTS
B T BT 3E35(0)I2 & My A& & TR 49 Rt > In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note
G o AR EE B ER L AR B ARIEN T ¢ 35(b) above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the

end of the reporting period:

N-_ZE—FRE=A=+—H8 BN LEE As at 31 March 2015, the Group had capital commitments, which
N BABEEE Y THESEY  DENE were contracted but not provided for, in respect of the construction
KR 7 B AEIES 4B 481,000 of industrial buildings in Mainland China amounting to approximately
— T U4 : #H024,987 0007T) ° HK$2,481,000 (2014: HK$24,987,000).

RN-E—RE=R=+—8 BRAE As at 31 March 2015, the Group had capital commitments, which
RABRAEEREE I WME . BELE were contracted but not provided for, in respect of the purchase
B CDERNBERBHEZERNRESEY of property, plant and equipment in Mainland China amounting to
810,463,000 ( —F — P F : K approximately HK$10,463,000 (2014: HK$10,593,000).

10,593,0007T ) ©

R-EBE—FF=A=+—H AQFIE As at 31 March 2015, the Company had no significant commitments
EAHEE( —E—PNE - m) o (2014: Nil).
37.BEALRRZ 37.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
FRX - BAMERREMMTAABRENE In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
BN REEEAUTHEEALTRS - the Group also had the following related party transactions during the
year:
(a) NEE B E21,402,0007T ( —ZF— (a) The Group purchased raw materials amounting to
P04 - 735 896,000 ) [ — B & HK$21,402,000 (2014: HK$35,896,000) from an associate at
NEIAB S HERG IR 2 B EE prices and on terms similar to those offered by unrelated suppliers
BB E R - of the Group.
BUEEMBRAT 2015 £ CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015 149




BA B R R M AL

—ZE—RF=A=1+—H

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

37.BEALRS(E) 37.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) (&) (a) (continued)

Z AEBER-BERA BR
BEAEBRCRIDERARE ([ERBR
Pl ) - AEEEY3,093,0007t(—F
— VU4 ¢ #¥8,512,0007T ) i B R
e FR - RSGMAAEEZHE
FER S °

BREEL  BEAXEIMEEREL
(ORARARZESR)  EREMI—
HITHAL  AHEFEBREXBR
NAEIBRAGHEBO0% 2 L FHE - B
REBEXFERAFAREL2EHAE
BRI FTAEBRRINEATE AL
B BERA - NERXRGRUAEE
HZ BB R AR R Z B MK
HETT e

eSS B A R BRI ER AR & Uk
A #1,357,0000( Z 2 — M 4F : B
#1,514,0007T) © LAARE B LR E
NAIEFRIEZAGFHEST °

In addition, the Group purchased raw materials of HK$3,093,000
(2014: HK$8,512,000) from a related company, Zhen Jian
Mould & Machinery (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“CC-SZ"). These
transactions were also continuing connected transactions of the
Group during the year.

As Dr. Chen CHIANG, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin
CHIANG (each being a director of the Company), together with
parties acting in concert with them, control the exercise of more
than 50% of the voting power at general meetings of Chen Chien
Holdings Limited, which indirectly holds the entire equity interest
of CC-SZ. CC-SZ is therefore a related company of the Group. The
transactions were conducted at prices and on terms mutually
agreed by the Group and the related company.

Moreover, the Group received rental income of HK$1,357,000
(2014: HK$1,514,000) from CC-SZ on terms mutually agreed by
the Group and the related company.

(b) NEEFBEEIE A BHH - (b) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:
KEHE Group
(B Fr) (HK$°000) 2015 2014
MHIEERA Short term employee benefits 11,067 11,972
ZIEBET Post-employment benefits 72 60
11,139 12,032
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RBERR - TRFERI SR TAZREE

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2015

38.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

mr as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
EREE Financial assets
B R EWRIE

Loans and receivables
rEE Group
(BMFor) (HK$000) 2015 2014
N E 5 R EBIRN Trade and bills receivables 754,144 831,402
A ® - ENFIER Financial assets included in deposits,

Hi R e rEE prepayments and other receivables 33,330 26,598
EIRIRITIF R Pledged bank deposits 58,341 82,738
Re RIRTTER Cash and bank balances 961,439 843,879

1,807,254 1,784,617

cRAE Financial liabilities

DU SHE R AT EZ

=R
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost

TEE Group
CEEFT) (HK$°000) 2015 2014
FENE 5 NEERK Trade and bills payables 294,721 402,660
SEAHMEMBRI X Financial liabilities included in

EztEENSREaE other payables and accruals 121,117 134,676
SHERITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 296,618 290,203

712,456 827,539

RIEEEBMRLT 2015 F]R
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38. ¢FTES¥EE) 38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)
LREE Financial assets
ERRERRE
Loans and receivables
VNN Company
(BMFr) (HK$000) 2015 2014
FEUS I B A R BR FUF 8 Amounts due from subsidiaries, net 1,126,004 1,305,886
G & RE A YR Financial assets included in deposits
M RE E and other receivables 1,987 723
RE RIRTTER Cash and bank balances 232,569 8,911
1,360,560 1,315,520
oz a=Ri Financial liabilities
DB KA EZ
=i
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost
AT Company
(B¥For) (HK$'000) 2015 2014
JEAHI B A J1BR IR Amounts due to subsidiaries 561,581 521,901
a0 A B th B ST BR R I Financial liabilities included in
EztEENSREaE other payables and accruals 688 643
HERITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 215,000 210,000
777,269 732,544
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0. BEEXERMEE 39. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a) Transferred financial assets that are not derecognized in their

(@) IERKRIEANCERSHEE

entirety

Bills endorsement under the Law of Negotiable Instruments of the
PRC

RIEFEZ 54 EikEE

The following table provide a summary of bills receivable that

TREMUBS EHESREETH

AR BRI RNEENENEERE have been transferred in such a way that part of the transferred

LiEEaE - financial assets do not qualify for derecognition, together with the
associated liabilities:
KEHE Group
(B Fr) (HK$°000) 2015 2014
HEEREREE Carrying amount of assets that continued
BREE to be recognized 13,235 13,834
HEaEREE Carrying amount of associated liabilities (13,235) (13,834)

RZZE-RF=A=+—RH A5H
AESTHEREZECEE THEY
BHRTEINETERER(EE
FE]) NEBEMNESHERNE
NESER - AAKEREEANRAR

At 31 March 2015, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
accepted by certain local banks in the PRC (the “Endorsed Bills”)
to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due
to such suppliers. Since the Group has retained the substantial
risks and rewards, which include default risk relating to the

kB BREEREBENENRR
Wit EREERESRBNMER
EELAENESEBRNE SRR -
BER AEBUEERBERAYTE
EAERN - BEEEAEME =77
& EREREERE -

Endorsed Bills, it continued to recognize the full carrying amounts
of the Endorsed Bills and the associated trade payables settled.
Subseqguent to the endorsement, the Group does not retain any
rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills, including sales, transfer or
pledge of the Endorsed Bills to any other third parties.
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30. MESRMEE &) 39. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

(b) Transferred financial assets that are derecognized in their entirety

(b) FERLBRANCERSRMEE

Bills endorsement under the Law of Negotiable Instruments of the

WIEF BRI A REEE

154

R-ZZE-—RAF=R=+—HB K&
BREETHEREEREERE
¥35,171,00070( —ZF — M 4F - B
36,654,000L ) E#EE THEBESE
MIRTTERXME TRE R & ILE
RBEERE])  NEBEMNILEHE
BORNESRR - RIEEREER
BERHREHRINABAANEA - RIE
FRERER - HIRITRR - AR L
REERERAABRERAAEEER
((FE28E]) AAKECERRK
IHERBEZBERNEAMS AR
KB - Btk - BAR IERER AR TR
BERRNMAREENMEBENE
SRR - AEERFES K TR
BERBLBEZERIEREER
BEORBARSARENRAEERR
MEREREE - it B2 8K
IEREEZBENAFEALNEK -

FR AKREREERRULEREER
BB MW AR MR RLEE - I
BREREENF AL R EBE R
B2 - ZEEENBETIIMIEL -

RIEEBERDA 2015 FRH

PRC

At 31 March 2015, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
accepted by certain reputable banks in the PRC (the
“Derecognized Endorsed Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in order
to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers with a carrying
amount in aggregate of HK$35,171,000 (2014: HK$36,654,000).
The Derecognized Endorsed Bills have a maturity of six months
at the end of the reporting period. In accordance with the
Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the
Derecognized Endorsed Bills have a right of recourse against the
Group if the banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”).
Since the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards relating to the Derecognized Endorsed Bills, it has
derecognized the full carrying amounts of the Derecognized
Endorsed Bills and the associated trade payables. The maximum
exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognized Endorsed Bills and the undiscounted cash flows
to repurchase these Derecognized Endorsed Bills is equal to
their carrying amounts. Thus, the fair values of the Group’s
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognized Endorsed Bills are
not significant.

During the year, the Group has not recognized any gain or loss on
the date of transfer of the Derecognized Endorsed Bills. No gains
or losses were recognized from the Continuing Involvement, both
during the year or cumulatively. The Endorsement has been made
evenly throughout the year.
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40. REBEE B EREE 40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

AEBETZSMIABRRERE NRITHE
7 BBBTER BRESREZER
oo EMEUERR - BNE S RERRE
R BEREARRR - Bt AERA KL EER
TTER

MASESRTAMEENEREARSHN
X SNERR - FERRERABES
Bz o AEBEAREEANFXER - B
Bz 5 & B T AR R OB S E R &Y
HRHENTX - EEEEERERZTRE
B - DAREOR MRS FIE ROUET TIEE B0 o

MERER

AEBAEHOTSH REFH R E E R
AEEWFERITEREH - AEEER
ERENERE  EAEANEKEARE -

B BRIVERARESBRME -

SRR

AEBEHNERBRABERS - DHER
MAERAE  URRBEARERA S
BEITRA -

AEBEINEZ HRER - ZFRBRERA
SENAMOBEERRER S - BAX
T AR - BRI aBARSEE -

EREETEERIAZET AR HEX
HMEBARFIEENR G RRERTEX
EMEEZINERR  WARE @FF
HhEARINERR -

RIEEEBMRLT 2015 F]R

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and bank
balances, pledged bank deposits, trade and bills receivables, other
receivables, trade and bills payables, other payables, accruals and
interest-bearing bank borrowings.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group had insignificant interest rate risk. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely
and effective manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s bank loans carrying floating interest
rates. The Group monitors its interest rate exposure closely and
considers to take measures to reduce significant interest rate exposure,
if any.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk arises from commercial
transactions, recognized assets and liabilities and net investments in
operations in Mainland China and Taiwan.

The Group has transactional currency risk exposures. Such risk
exposures arise from a substantial portion of the Group’s sales and
purchases transactions denominated in United States dollars (“US$”),
Renminbi (“RMB”), Japanese yen (“JPY”) and New Taiwanese dollars
(“NTD").

Management closely monitors foreign exchange exposure in
transactions denominated in US$, RMB, JPY and NTD and its
investments in Mainland China and Taiwan and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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40. TREMEE B ERBER(#E)

SRR (4F)

TRIVRAEBRRANG N LA RN RS
HIR(EMBEMBEBRFTENBERT)
X AR® - BEARFaBEXNS
IR REE B R BURE (/

MATEES) -

REBEENARE

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2015

Foreign currency risk (continued)

assets and liabilities) and the Group’s equity.

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in US$, RMB, JPY
and NTD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary

SNEE = BRBE AT F
i, Ch) #hn, (R2) Em
Increase/ Increase/  #10,/ (ED)*
(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in foreign in profit (decrease)
(CE¥For) (HK$'000) currency rate (%) before tax in equity*
2015
A REEETHE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% 63,409 -
HMARBEEA T E If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) (63,409) -
MARBHETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% 460 -
MARBHEETRE If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) (460) -
fin HEEHE T AE If JPY strengthens against HK$ 5% (1,690) -
W B EEE A If JPY weakens against HK$ (5%) 1,690 -
fmsh & W ETHE If NTD strengthens against US$ 5% (2,475) _
i & YRt E If NTD weakens against US$ (5%) 2,475 _
2014
MARBSETHE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% 66,879 -
i AR EESE T E If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) (66,879) -
MARMEETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% 3,443 _
MAREEETHRE If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) (3,443) _
fisi B BB T AHE If JPY strengthens against HK$ 5% (2,434) -
fin B BT AT E If JPY weakens against HK$ (5%) 2,434 -
¥ A EHETTHHE If NTD strengthens against US$ 5% (4,766) -
(LR E3E v A ] If NTD weakens against US$ (5%) 4,766 _

© TRERBRT

RIEEBERDA 2015 FRH

* Excluding retained profits
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40. cRiEBEEREERBE &) 40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

FERR

EERRE 2 EEENR ZH 7 TR TE
BrTEEEMSAKRERMRZMEER
HYRTBENE -

R E B RN E MR A E IR ERAE
HEBENMEE - I REBEREH
R AEEGEZSRENE S EBKHOA
WEeHE - AR EFKIES (E
RAVRERE - Bt - AEBEHRERR
WAEK °

AEEEBEMEE(BRREE RRITHE
FINEERBRDENETOENTR &
BAEREENRZETAENKREE - A%
EARFAREMBERMELNERER
% BRAFHIRC SR IEHMIEE34 -

MM AEER EERARERENES R
5 WEBELIRERR - KR EHAR
BEE/RSFETER - AEEYTRE
HEAEREEAR -

ERARSERYVEZIRFFEENERER
DEE—SEIRER  CERBEHEKM
22 o

REBES M

AEERBRERRABDESFE TR - UE
REBSRRNER - 2 TEZ RIS
TA(WN: EREBESEEEERFR) RERE
E(: BYE S RRERFHIEA K&

BARERESRE -

RIEEEBMRLT 2015 F]R

(continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty of a
transaction is unwilling or unable to fulfill its obligation and the Group
thereby suffers a financial loss.

The credit limits of trade receivables are determined and monitored
by management on an ongoing basis. In addition, at the end of each
reporting period, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for unrecoverable amounts. Therefore, the Group’s exposure to
impairment is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and bank balances, arises from default of the counterparty
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. The Group is also exposed to credit risk through the
granting of financial guarantees, further details of which are disclosed
in note 34 to the financial statements.

Since the Group trades only with recognized and creditworthy parties,
there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit risk
are managed by customer/counterparty. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 22 to the
financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments (e.g., trade and bills payables) and financial
assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

40. TREMEE B ERBER(#E)

REEERER(E) Liquidity risk (continued)

AREFHN L RHaE(RIERAARE)RNRE The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities (including
HIR(REFTAARIT RN RER) W E H A

contingent liabilities) as at the end of the reporting period, based on

ST - the contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:
2015
=@ANLR
=EAR +=@EAR
HIREKR  More than 3
Less than months and
rEE Group 3 months or less than wst
(EMTFor) (HK$'000) on demand 12 months Total
JENE 5 MEBRER Trade and bills payables 275,672 19,049 294,721
F0 A EL A ERT AR A K Financial liabilities included in
ErrEENERAas other payables and accruals 121,117 - 121,117
STEHRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 296,618 - 296,618
IBUARITHIER - SR AEEE © Guarantees given to banks, at the maximum,
RIERRG TEPIEEE for bank loans granted to customers to
REBERMIRITER purchase the Group’s products 80,737 - 80,737
774,144 19,049 793,193
2014
=@ANLER
=EAR +=@EAR
HIREKR  More than 3
Less than months and
rEE Group 3 months or less than wst
(BEEFor) (HK$'000) on demand 12 months Total
JENE 5 MEBRER Trade and bills payables 346,481 56,179 402,660
a0 A ELAERT AR AR K Financial liabilities included in
ErrEENeRAas other payables and accruals 134,676 - 134,676
STEHRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 290,203 - 290,203
BUARITHIER - SR AEEE © Guarantees given to banks, at the maximum,
RIERRG TEPIEEE for bank loans granted to customers to
REEERNRITER purchase the Group’s products 116,276 - 116,276
887,636 56,179 943,815
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40. TREMEE B ERBER (&)

41.

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2015

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)

REE SRR (E) Liquidity risk (continued)
=EAARRER
Less than 3 months
AATF Company or on demand
CEETFT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014
JEASH I B~ A BR TR Amounts due to subsidiaries 561,581 521,901
A0 A B Ath B ST BR R I Financial liabilities included in
FEztEENSREE other payables and accruals 688 643
TEIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 215,000 210,000
WHERB AR IREERE Facilities available to subsidiaries for which
MR AR T AR guarantees were given to banks 625,893 795,827
1,403,162 1,528,371

EXRERE

AEEEAEENTEBRREEAKE
SELENRE N RRISRENERL X
SR EE R KR EMIR SRR

AR BAR B Y B B T 2 % S
HENRE - BRFTNABEARRE - K
SELSRHERTEROBE - RARRE
EEARRBITHR - BE_T—HF=FH
=t+—BR-T-ME=A=+—HIF
ER - %EFEABEZBR  BRIEF
I AT B

AN - AEETE R RENEEAMR (BN

MBEERARBAE)BEER - NEE
ZBRBEREFREEERER

BT

WM BREREN - E—RFA-+EHH
LHE R FEL -

RIEEEBMRLT 2015 F]R

41.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximize shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and make adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2015 and 31
March 2014.

In addition, the Group monitors capital using the position of net current

assets, which is total current assets minus total current liabilities. The
Group’s policy is to maintain a positive balance of the net current assets.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by
the board of directors on 25 June 2015.
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ARZHERBRTE -

Principal Subsidiaries
As at 31 March 2015

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

P YNSIESE ]
AL FEf EzESH
k& E BT Percentage
Place of B, of equity
incorporation/ BUWEZR  attributable
DEETB registration Issued share/ to the FEER
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BEEE
Held indirectly
WD BR AT =0 A 100 THE T
Asian Plastic Machinery Taiwan Ordinary Sale of
Company, Limited @ #14%50,000,0007T plastic injection
NTD50,000,000 moulding machines
EEE BN RET M EE B, 2,100,000% 7T 100 HERHEERTEREA
ORI BRATWG R R B US$2,100,000 Manufacture and sale
Chen Hsong CAD CAM PRC/ of precision moulds
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ©® Mainland China
EEMBEEREERAR] B A 100 REFBEREERSE
Chen Hsong Finance and Hong Kong Ordinary Provision of financial
Management Services Limited BT and management
HK$2 services
BETEE R BRAFOO FE, 4,000,000 7T 100 SSEERYES
Chen Hsong Industrial Park alCipN US$4,000,000 Property holding
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ©® PRC/

160 mmzms®RAE 2015 3%
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Principal Subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2015

PNSIES 2]
FAL EE EzEIE
RikEE BT Percentage
Place of B, of equity
incorporation/ BUWEZR  attributable
NGIE=S registration Issued share/ to the FEEK
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BEFE (&)
Held indirectly (continued)
EHYRHERR AR BB Tmiss2T 100 REDRFERS
Chen Hsong Logistics Services Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Provision of
Company Limited IR ERRIEAR N - logistics services
7515,000,0007T
Non-voting deferred ©
HK$5,000,000
RS MAR AT BB TmisE2T 100 THE T
Chen Hsong Machinery Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Sale of
Company, Limited IR ERERERD® - plastic injection
75 #£50,000,0007T moulding machines
Non-voting deferred ©
HK$50,000,000
EHERE ORY)) i, 7&#24,000,0007T 100 BUE o SHE ST
BRARO@®O PR A R HK$24,000,000 Manufacture and sale
Chen Hsong Mechanical and PRC/ of tie bars
Electrical Equipment Mainland China
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. @@ ®)
BB (BR)ERATVWGE FE, 8,010,000% 7T 100 SUE R E T
Chen Hsong Machinery (Ningbo) ey NS US$8,010,000 Manufacture and sale
Company, Limited @@ ® PRC/ of plastic injection
Mainland China moulding machines
EHEEM ORI AR ARVOO hE 17,130,000 7T 100 RIS MIHE T B
Chen Hsong Machinery AR R R US$17,130,000 Manufacture and sale
(Shenzhen) Company, PRC/ of plastic injection

Limited 4 @ ©®)

RIEEEBMRLT 2015 F]R

Mainland China

moulding machines
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Principal Subsidiaries
As at 31 March 2015

RRARHFE
FAL EE EmEI
REEE BT Percentage
Place of B, of equity
incorporation/ BUWEZR  attributable
NGIE=S registration Issued share/ to the FEEK
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BERE (&)
Held indirectly (continued)
R A R 2 R)@ =0 AR 100 SUERHE T
Chen Hsong Machinery Taiwan Taiwan Ordinary Manufacture and sale
Company, Limited @ #14%165,000,0007T of plastic injection
NTD165,000,000 moulding machines
BELHORYNDERATOVGO hE, 7% 10,000,0007T 100 SHEE B
Chen Hsong Sales & Marketing alCipN HK$10,000,000 Sale of
(Shenzhen) Company, PRC/ plastic injection
Limited @@ ® Mainland China moulding machines
EERHRAER AR EE iR 100 THE T B
Chen Hsong Technology Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Sale of
2T plastic injection
HK$2 moulding machines
BB T EE [ B E EB R A, Bl 7,300,000% 7T 100 BUE MIHE T
BRARD®O AR R B US$7,300,000 Manufacture and sale
Foshan Shunde Chen De PRC/ of plastic injection
Plastics Machinery Mainland China moulding machines
Company Limited ©®®)
61T B RS R A B, 7,900,0003 ¢ 100 FUERHE T B
BRARD®O e lciy N7 US$7,900,000 Manufacture and sale
Foshan Shunde Chen De PRC/ of plastic injection

Precision Machinery Mainland China moulding machines

Company, Limited 1@ ®
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Principal Subsidiaries
As at 31 March 2015

VI UNSIESE S|
FAL EE EzEIE
RikEE BT Percentage
Place of B, of equity
incorporation/ BUWEZR  attributable
NGIE=S registration Issued share/ to the FEEK
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BEFE (&)
Held indirectly (continued)
BT IRIEE BRI g, 3,000,000% ¢ 100  BBENHERESZE
BRARDV@®O AR A R US$3,000,000 Manufacture and sale
Intra-Italy Hydraulics PRC/ of hydraulic motors
(Foshan Shunde) Mainland China
Company, Limited @ ®
RN BT R FE, 12,000,000 7T 100 BUE R EE G
BRARI@@O R K B US$12,000,000 Manufacture and sale
Shenzhen Chen Hsong Precision PRC/ of casting parts

Equipment Limited @ ®®

(1) WERARINGBERE -

(2) WRRIBTIIEERERE -

Mainland China

Notes:

(3) BEZREERMNDEXREENEEREE - £ Q)
BERRAEG LRERBZBHIRFRNERE

WHRBHE B AR 2 B4R ©

(4) TEXRREBEMHBR

(6) WEMBRRIEENBRRIFBBTELKE (5
FHEDETE Tk 22k & 5t BN F 75 P BB A8 4% Eo

BB RRIER

REEBERAR 2015 FH

These companies are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises.

This company is sino-foreign equity joint ventures.

The non-voting deferred shares carry limited rights to dividends, no rights to
vote at general meetings and limited rights to receive any surplus in a return of
capital in a winding-up.

English company names are translated for identification purpose only.

Subsidiaries whose statutory financial statements were not audited by Ernst &
Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015 163




hEMBHE

AT AREaAEERAEAEAVRFRED AH
RSEZ M ERERNESE  BE  BEKSF

PERRE R o

E
HZE=A=1—HIFE

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling

interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the

published audited financial statements, is set out below.

RESULTS

Year ended 31 March

(BEFT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
W zs Revenue 1,567,788 1,846,175 1,793,552 1,838,394 2,423,528
4 g | Profit from operating activities 43,908 104,762 123,014 205,587 417,340
AE AR Finance costs (4,966) (5,469) (5,610) (4,607) (2,091)
JE(hE &N A Share of profits less losses

SRR E e of associates 3,561 6,638 3,731 752 6,325
BB A4 A Profit before tax 42,503 105,931 121,135 201,732 421,574
T8 Income tax expense (23,703) (24,334) (16,325) (41,928) (75,101)
NEE R Profit for the year 18,800 81,597 104,810 159,804 346,473
BEN Attributable to:
AAREZEFEB A Equity holders of the Company 20,356 81,368 103,933 160,334 343,263
RIS RS Non-controlling interests (1,556) 229 877 (530) 3,210

18,800 81,597 104,810 159,804 346,473

BE  BERFERER

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

R=A=+—H As at 31 March

CBEETT) (HK$'000) 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

BEMRE Total assets 3,752,231 3,896,487 3,804,862 3,762,347 3,832,536

BERE Total liabilities (850,220) (981,473) (932,283) (934,612) (1,056,008)

RIS MRS Non-controlling interests (18,341) (19,888) (19,326) (18,380) (18,198)
2,883,670 2,895,126 2,853,253 2,809,355 2,758,330
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EEEERRASE
Chen Hsong Holdings Limited

EEMANEAH TRIMAREH13E1550
13-15 Dai Wang Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong

EB5E / Tel: (852) 2665 3222

{BE / Fax: (852) 2664 8202

431t / Website: www.chenhsong.com.hk
EH / E-mail: comm@chenhsong.com.hk
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